AGENDA
FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION
Office of Insurance Regulation
Materials Available on the Web at:
http://www.floir.com/Sections/GovAffairs/FSC.aspx

April 22, 2014

MEMBERS
Governor Rick Scott
Attorney General Pam Bondi
Chief Financial Officer Jeff Atwater
Commissioner Adam Putnam

Contact: Karen Kees
(850-413-2474) 9:00 A.M.
LL-03, The Capitol
Tallahassee, Florida

ITEM SUBJECT RECOMMENDATION

1. Minutes of the Financial Services Commission for December 10, 2013.

http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/cabinet/agendal3/1210/transcript.PDF

(ATTACHMENT 1) FOR APPROVAL

2. Request for Approval for Publication of Proposed Amendment to Rule 690-144.005,.007;
Credit for Reinsurance; Credit for Reinsurance from Eligible Reinsurers

These rules are being amended in order to conform to the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (NAIC) model laws for accreditation purposes and to provide consistency
among regulatory jurisdictions as to the manner in which reinsurers are granted the status of
“certified reinsurer” (currently termed “eligible reinsurer” in the rule) and the manner in which
Florida domestic insurance companies can apply credit for reinsurance from these entities.
The amendments pertain to a requirement that ceding insurers notify the Office in the event
that reinsurance recoverables or reinsurance ceded exceeds a certain amount; the filing
requirements for certified reinsurers; the factors to be considered in the evaluation and
rating of certified reinsurers; the method by which a jurisdiction is determined to be qualified;
the circumstances under which the Commissioner may suspend or otherwise revoke a
certified reinsurer’s certification; and the effect of a rating downgrade, rating upgrade, or
revocation of the certification of a certified reinsurer.

(ATTACHMENT 2) APPROVAL FOR PUBLICATION




3. Request for Approval for Publication of Proposed Amendment to Rule 690-148.001;
Funding of Preneed Contracts With Life Insurance Annuities

This amendment to the rule removes the dollar amount cap and refers instead to the statute
(626.785, F.S.) which contains the dollar amount and brings the rule in compliance with
current law. This amendment eliminates the need to amend the rule when the statutory
amount is changed in the future.

(ATTACHMENT 3) APPROVAL FOR PUBLICATION

4. Request for Approval for Publication to Repeal Rule Chapter 690-123; Civil Remedy
and Rule Chapter 690-228; Continuing Education

Rule Chapter 690-123, Florida Administrative Code, was promulgated to implement the
provisions of Section 624.155, Florida Statutes. Section 624.155, Florida Statutes, permits
any party to bring a civil action against an insurer when such person is damaged by a
violation of certain enumerated provisions of the Florida Insurance Code. As a condition
precedent to bringing an action under Section 624.155, Florida Statutes, the insured is
required to give the Department of Financial Services 60 day written notice of the violation.
The notice is required to be provided to the Department of Financial Services on a form
provided by the Department and must include the statutory provision violated, the facts and
circumstances giving rise to the violation and the name of any individual involved in the
violation.

Section 624.155, Florida Statutes, gives the Department of Financial Services authority to
enforce the statute and not the Office. As a result the Office does not have sufficient
statutory authority to enforce the Rules contained in Rule Chapter 690-123 and these rules
should be repealed. Furthermore, the Department of Financial Services has developed its
own rule and form to implement the provisions of Section 624.155, Florida Statutes.

Rule Chapter 690-228 was promulgated to establish requirements and standards for
continuing education courses and records for persons: (1) licensed to solicit or sell
insurance or act as limited surety or bail bond agents, (2) licensed to adjust workers’
compensation claims in this state and (3) authorized to offer or teach related coursework in
this state.

Section 626.2816, Florida Statutes, specifically requires the Department of Financial
Services to adopt rules relating to continuing education of this type. Towards this end, the
Department of Financial Services has promulgated Rule Chapter 690-228. The Office does
not have sufficient statutory authority to enforce the rules contained in Rule Chapter 690-
228 and as a result this rule chapter should be repealed.

(ATTACHMENT 4) APPROVAL FOR PUBLICATION







[ B S ) W & & Y = S U5 B A0 B

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
25

STATE OF FLORIDA

IN RE: MEETING OF THE GOVERNCR AND

CABINET
/
CABINET MEMBERS: GOVERNOR RICK SCOTT
ATTORNEY GENERAL PAM BONDI
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER JEFF
ATWATER
COMMISSIONER OF AGRICULTURE
ADAM PUTNAM
DATE: TUESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2013
LOCATION: CABINET MEETING ROOM
LOWER LEVEL, THE CAPITOL
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
REPORTED BY: NANCY S. METZKE, RPR, FPR

COURT REPORTER

C & N REPORTERS
POST OFFICE BOX 3093
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32315~3093
(850) 697-8314 / FAX (850) 697-8715
nancy(metzke.com
candnreporters.com

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314




~ s U e W NP

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

i4

OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Now I'd like to recognize
Kevin McCarty, Commissioner of the Office of
Insurance Regulation, to present his agenda.

The first thing I'd like to say, Kevin, is
thank you for all of your hard work on Citizens.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Thank you.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: We —-- Barry has done a great
job, but he wouldn't have gotten there but for your
help. So I want to thank you wvery much for all
you've done to make sure we were right-size
Citizens.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Thank you, Governor,
and good morning. Good morning, members of the
Commission.

Our first agenda item is for the adoption of
the minutes from October 10th, 2013 meeting of the
Financial Services Commission.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a motion to approve?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: So move.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a second?

CFO ATWATER: Second.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Moved and seconded,

show the minutes approved without objection.

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314




10 B L« ) T 2 e o S N A N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

15

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Both Agenda Items 2 and
3 are here for requests for approval for final
adeoption having tc do with data collection
regarding title insurance agencies and title
insurance underwriters.

Under Florida Statute 627.782 which authorizes
rulemaking to collect data from the title insurance
industry for the purposes of analyzing rates,
looking at the solvency of the industry, as well as
the overall condition of the title industry.
Specifically, with Agenda Item 2, we're requesting
final adoption for Rule 690-186.013, which is title
insurance statistical gathering for title insurance
agency.

The Office is proposing striking the current
rule and supplanting it with a new one which is
entitled -- a form entitled: Title insurance
experience rate reporting for agents. And this
data will be ccllected electronically.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a motion to approve?

CEFO ATWATER: So moved.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a second?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BCNDI: Seccnd.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Any comments or objections?

(NO RESPONSE} .

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314




= W N &

o -~ o W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

16

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion
carries,

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Similarly with Agenda
ITtem Number 3 1s a request for approval for final
adoption for a new rule. This is for title
insurance underwriters. The proposed rule
implements the provisions of Florida Statutes by
listing the types of information to be submitted to
the Office and adopts a form for the title
insurance experience reporting for underwriters.
This is & complement to the Agency. This data will
also be collected electronically.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a motion to approve?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: So move.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM: Second.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Any comments or objections?

{NO RESPONSE) .

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion
carries.

Thank you, Kevin.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Thank you, Governor.

Thank you, members of the Commission.

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850~-697-8314







MEMORANDUM

DATE:  April2,2014
TO: _ Kevin M. McCarty, Commissioner, Office of Insurance Regulation
THROUGH: Belinda Miller, Genera) Counsel

FROM: Dennis Threadgilt "\

Stephen Fredrickso

SU'BJECT: Cabinet Agenda for April 22, 2014
Request for Approval to Publish Amendments to

Rule 690-144.005,.007 Credit for Reinsurance: Credit for Reinsurance'From
Eligible Reinsurers '

Assignment # 142116-13

The Office of Insurance Regulation requests that these proposed rule amendments be
presented to the Cabinet aides on or before April 16, 2014 and to the Financial Services
Commission on April 22, 2014, with a request to approve for publication the proposed rules.

These rules are being amended in order to conform to the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (NAIC) model laws for accreditation purposes and to provide consistency
among regulatory jurisdictions as to the manner in which reinsurers are granted the status of
‘certified reinsurer” (currently termed “eligible reinsurer” in the rule) and the manner in which
Florida domestic insurance companies can apply credit for reinsurance from these entities. The
amendments pertain to a requirement that ceding insurers notify the Office in the event that
reinsurance recoverables or reinsurance ceded exceeds a certain amount; the filing :
requirements for certified reinsurers; the factors to be considered in the evaluation and rating of
certified reinsurers: the method by which a jurisdiction is determined to be qualified; the
circumstances under which the Commissioner may suspend, revoke, or otherwise madify a -
certified reinsurer’s certification; and the effect of a rating downgrade, rating upgrade, or
revocation of the certification of a certified reinsurer.

Sections 624.308, 624.610(14), 624.307(1), 624.610, F.S., provide rulemaking authority and
laws implemented for these rules.

Stephen Fredrickson and Alyssa Lathrop are the attorneys handling these rules. Attached are:
1) the proposed rule(s), 2) any incorporated materials, such as forms; and 3) copies of the
rulemaking statutory authority and law implemented.

Approved for signature: W

"Befinda Miller, General Counsel

Approved for submission to Financial Services
Commission: .

Kevin M. McCarty;Commissioner (/'
Office of Insurance Regulation




690-144.005 Credit for Reinsurance.

(1) No change.

(2) Credit for reinsurance by a- domestic insurer shall be allowed when the reinsurance is ceded -
to an assuming insurer which is accredited as a reinsurer in this state pursuant to Section
624 .610(3)(b), E.S. Florida—Statutes and Ru_le 690-144.002, F.A.C., as of any date on which
- statutory financial statement credit for reinsurance is claimed. An accredited reinsurer pursuant to
Section 624.610(3)(b), F.S.Florida-Statutes:
| (a)1. No change.

2. Form OIR-C1-1464 is available on the Office’s web site located at https://www floir.com and

shall be filed electronically via the foice’s Online Company Admissions system, “iApply.” located at

http:llwww.floir.comliportal;

(b) No change.

(c) Files annually and quarterly with the Office via the Office’'s Regulatory Electronic Filing

System, “REFS,” located at http.//www floir.com/iportal, a copy of its annual and gquarterly
statements filed on the National Association of Insurance Commissioners convention blanks, which-
are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference, with the insurance department of its state of
domicile or, in the case of a U.S. branch of an alien assuming insurer, with the state through which it
is entered and in which it is licensed to transact insurance or reinsurance, and a copy of its most
recent audited financial statement and maintains a surplus as regards policyholders in accordance

with Section 624.610(3)(b)1.d., F.S., and whose approval has been 'gi'anted by the Office. If

Page 1 of 21



quarterly statements are not required by the state of domicile, quarterly statements shall only be
required upon written request of the Office. The following National Association of Insurance
Commissioners blanks are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference:
| 1. NAIC Annual Statement Blank Life/Accident/Health_2012;-2008;

2. NAIC Quarterly Statement Blank Life/Accident/Health 2012:-2005.

3. NAIC Annual Statement Blank Health_ 2012:-20086;

4. NAIC Quarterly Statement Blank Health 2012;-2005,

5. NAIC Annual Statement Blank Property and Casualty 2012:-2005- and

6. NAIC Quarterly Statement Blank Prdperty and Casualty 20122006,

{3) No change.

'(4) Credit for Reinsurance — Reinsurers Maintaining Trust Funds.

(a)1. Pursuant to Section 624.610(3)(c)1., F.S.Flerida-Statutes, the Office shall allow credit for

' reinsurance ceded by a domestic insurer to an assuming insurer which, as of any date on wh.ich

statutory financial statement credit for reinsurance is claimed, and thereafter for so long as credit for
reinsurance is claimed, maintains a trust fund in an amount prescribed below in a qualified financial
institution as defined in Section 624.610(5)(b), F.S.Florida—Statutes, fdr the payment of the valid
claims of its U.S. domiciled ceding insurers, their-assigns and successors in intere_st.

2. No change.

(b) The following requirements abply to the following categories of assuming insurer:

1.a. No change. |

b. The assuming insurer shall maintain a trusteed surplus of not less than $20,000,000,_9Lcep_t

as provided in paragraph c. of this subsection.

Page 2 of 21




c. At any time after the assuming insurer has permanently discontinued underwriting new

business secured by the trust for at feast three full years, the commissioner with principal requlatory

oversight of the trust may authorize a reduction in the required trusteed surplus, but only after a

finding, based on an assessment of the risk, that the new required surplus level is adequate for the

protection of U.S. ceding insurers, policyholders and claimants in light of reasonably foreseeable

adverse loss development. The risk assessment may involve an actuarial review, including an

independent analysis of reserves and cash flows, and shall consider all material risk factors,

including when applicable the lines of business involved, the stability of the incurred loss estimates

and the effect of the surplus requirements on the assuming insurer's liquidity or solvency. The

minimum required trusteed surplus may not be reduced to an_ amount Ielss than thirty percent (30%)

of the assuming insurer's liabilities attributable to reinsurance ceded by U.S. ceding insurers

covered by the trust.

2. No chang.e.

(c)-(d) No change.

(e) Assets deposited in the trust and the trusteed surplus of a single assuming insurer shail
consist of assets of a quality and limitation substantially similar to that required in Part Il of Chapter

625, F.S.Flerida-Statutes, and shall be valued according to their fair market value.

(f) Assets deposited in the trust and the trusteed surplus of a group including incorporated and
i.ndividual unincorporated underwriters  established to meet the requirements of Section
624.610(3)(c)3.b., F.S.Florda—Statutes, shall be of the type and subject to limitations of the
following:

1. Assets deposited in the trusts established pursuant to Section 624.610(3)(c)3.b., F.S.Flerida

Statutes, and this section shall be valued according to their fair market value and shall consist only

Page 3 of 21



of cash in U.S. dollars, certificates of deposit issued by a U.S. financial institution as defined in
Section 624.610(5)(a), E.S.Flerida-Statutes, clean irrevocable, unconditional and “evergreen” letters
of credit issued or confirmed by a qualified U.S. financial institution, as defined in Section
624.610(5)(a}, E.S Florida-Statutes, and investments of tﬁe type specified in this subsection.

2.-5. No change.

(5) Trust agreements qualified under Section 624.610(4), I.S.Flerida-Statutes-

(a) No change.

(b) Required conditions:

| 1. The trust agreement shall be entered into between the beneficiary, the grantor and a trustee,
which shall be a qualified U.S United-States financial institution as defined in Section 624.610(5)b),

2.410. No change.

11. Notwithstanding other prbvisiohs of this rule, when a trust agreement is established to meet
the fequirements of Section 624.610(4), F.S.Florida—Statutes, in conjunction with a reinsurance
agreement covering risks other than life, annuities, and accident and health; where it is customéry
practice to provide a trust agreement for a specific purpose, the trust agreement may provide that
the ceding insurer shall undertake to use and apply amounts drawn upon the trust account, without
diminution because of the insolvency of the ceding insUrér or the assuming insurer, only for the
following purposes:

a.-b. No change.

c. Where the ceding insurer has received notification of termination of the trust aécount and
where the assuming insurer's entire obligations under the specific reinsurance agreement remain

unliquidated and undischarged ten (10) days prior to the termination date, to withdraw amounts

Page 4 of 21



equal to the obligations and deposit those amounts in a separate account, in thé name of the ceding
insurer in any qualified U.S.United-States financial institution apart from its general assets, in trust
for such useé and purposes specified in a. and b. above as may remain executory after the
withdrawal and for any period after the termination daté. |

12. Notwithstanding other pfovisions of this rule, when a trust agréement is established to meet
the requirements of Section 624.610(4), E.S.Flerida—Statutes, in conjunction with a r'einsu.rance
agreement covering life, annuities, or accident and health risks, where it is customary to provide a
trust agreement for a specific purpose, the trust agreement may provide that the ceding insurer shall
u.ndertak_e to use aﬁd apply amounts drawn upon the trust account, without diminution because of
the insolvency of the ceding insurer or the assuming insurer, dnly for thé following purposes:

a.-c. No change.

13.-14. No éhange.

(c) No change.

(d) A reinsurance agreement may contain proviéion_s that stipulate that assets deposifed in the
trust account shall be valued according to their current fair market value and shall consist only of
cash in U.S.United-States dollars, certificates of deposit issued by a U.S.United-States bank and
payable in U.S.United-States dollars, and investments permitted by Part Il of Chapter 625, F.S.-of
the-Floridalnsurance-Gode or any combination of the above, provided investments in or issued by
an entity controlling, controlled by or under commdn control with either the grantor or the benefiéiary
of the trust shall not exc.eed five percent (5%) of total investments. The reinsurance agreement may
further specify the types of investments to be deposited. Where a frust agreement is entered into in
conjunction with a reinsurance agreément covering risks other than life, annuities and accident and

health, then the trust agreement may contain the provisions required by this paragraph in lieu of

Page 5 of 21



including such provisions in the reinsurance agreement.

(6) Letters of credit qualified under Section 624.610(4)(c), E.S.Ferida-Statutes-

(a)1. The letter of credit shall be clean, irrevocable, unconditional, and issued or confirmed by a
gualified U.S.United-States financial institution.

2. As Qsed in this subsection (6), a qualified U.S.United-States financial institution is one which
meets the definition set forth in Section 626.7492(2)(j), F.S.Flerida-Statutes:

3.-6. No change.

{b) No change.

(c) The letter of credit shall contain a statement to the effect that the obligation of the qualified
U.S United—States financial institution under the letter of credit is in no way contingent upon
reimbu rs_ement with reépéct thereto.

(d) No change.

{e)1. No change.

2. AII drafts drawn on the letter of credit shall be presentabie at an office in the United States of a
qualified U.S.United-States financial institution. |

(f) The letter of rcredit .shall be issued or confirmed by a qualified U.S.United-States financial
institution authorized to issue letters of credit, pursuant to Section 624.610(5)a), F.S.Florida

Statutes:
(9) No change.
(7 Credit shall be allowed foreign and alien insurers when the reinsurance is ceded to an
~ assuming insurer which is domiciled or licensé'd in, or, inrfhe case of a U.S. branch of an alien
assuming insurer is entered through, a state which employs standards fegarding credit for

reinsurance substantially similar to those appliéable under these rules, and the assuming insurer

Page 6 0of 21



and the reinsurance agreement meets the requirements established by this rule and Section
624.610, F.S.Florida-Statutes-

(8) A domestic ceding insurer_shall notify the Office within thirty (30) days after reinsurance

recoverables from any single assuming insurer, or group of assuming insurers, exceeds fifty percent

(50%) of the domestic ceding- insurer’s last reported surplus to policyholders, or after it is determined

that reinsurance recoverables from any single assuming insurer, or group of assuming insurers, is

likely to exceed this limit. The notification shall demonstrate that the exposure is safely manaded by

the domestic ceding insurer,

(9) A domestic ceding insurer shall notify the Office within thirty (30) days after ceding to any

single assuming insurer, or group of assuming insurers. more than twenty percent (20%) of the

domestic ceding insurer's gross written premium in the prior calendar vear, or after it is determined

- that the reinsurance ceded to any single assuming insurer, or group of assuming insurers, is likely to

'exceed this limit. The'notificatiqn shall demonstrate that the exposure is safely managed by the

domestic ceding insurer.

Specific Authority 624.308, 624.610(14), FS. Law Implemented 624.7307(1), 624.610 FS. History—
New 1-30-91, Formerly 4-108.005, Amended 12-25-97, 10-13-02, Formeriy 4-144-005, Amended 9-
14-086,

Page 7 of 21



690-144.007 Credit for Reinsurance from Ceriified Eligible-Reinsurers.

(1) Purpose. Paragraph-{3}{e)-of Section 624.610(3)(e), F.S., gives the Office Commissioperthe

option to allow credit for reinsurance without full collateral for transactions involving assuming

insurers not meeting the requirements of Sections 624.610(3)(a), (b), (¢), or (d)<{d}, F.S. These rules

implement that_subsection-paragraph. This rule does not apply to assuming insurers_reinsurers-that

meet the requirements of Sections 624.610(3)(a),_(b), (c). or (d)-{&}, F.S. This rule is not an attempt

to assert extra-territorial jurisdiction. Insurers that write in states other than Florida will need to

~comply with the laws of those states.—TFhis—rule-applies-only-to-property-and-casualty-insuranceit
(2) Definitions. As used in this rule the following terms have the following meanings:
(a) “Ceding insurer” means a domestic insurer, és defined by paragraph-(H-ef-Section 624.06(_1_1,
F.S.

(b) “Certified Eligible—reinsurer” means an assuming insurer that which—does not meet the

requirements of paragraphs-(3Xa)-(3}b)-or3)}ey-of Section 624.610(3)(a), (b), (c), or (d), F.S., and

that whish-has been determined by the Office eommissioner-by order to have met the requirements

set forth in subsections (7) and (8) of this rule.
(c) “Qualified Eligible-jurisdiction” means a jurisdiction which has met the requirements set forth
in subsection (98) of this rule.

(3) Credit for reinsurance under this section shall apply only to reinsurance contracts entered into

or renewed on or after the effective date of the certification of the assuming insurer, Withrespest-to

certified-an-eligiblereinsurer; provided that the certified eligible-reinsurer holds surplus in excess of

Page 8 of 21



- $250 400-million and maintains—en

entities; a secure financial strength rating from at least two of the rating agencies indicated in

paragraphs (a) through (e)(d} of this subsection. Due consideration shall be given to the group rating

where appropriate. The credit is subject to the limitations set forth in this rule. As provided in Section

624.610(e), F.S., the The-rating agencies are:

| (a) Sfandard and Poor's;

- (b) Moody’s Investors Service;
(c) Fitch Ratings;
(d) AIVI Best Cdmpany; and-or

_' (e} Demotech.

(4) The collateral required to allow one hundred percent (100%) credit shall be no less than the

percentage specified for the lowest rating as indicated below:

Collateral

Rating Required Best S&P Moody's Fitch Demotech
Secure — 1 0% At++ AAA - Aaa AAA A"
Secure—2 | 10% A+ | AA+ AA AN | AL EEZ | aar An AA. A
Secure—3 | 20% AA- A+ ArA- | AT AZ A3 A+, ArA- A
Secure—4 | 50% A- A- A3 A n/a

| T BBB+, BBB Baa BBB+, BBB " nla
_ Q, 1 1 1 1 1 ia
Secure=5 | 75% | B+ B+ BBB- | Baa2, Baa3 BBB-
+ -

‘ B, B-, |BB+ BB,BB-,| Bat,Ba2, BB ,gEBé-BB ’ n/a
Vulnerable o C++, C+, B+, B, B, Ba3, B1, o
T -s | "% |cdp|ccecce, | Bapa | B LlOCHECG

E.F '
- D, R:NR Caa, Ca, C c.DD

For reinsurance ceded by Florida domestic property insurers for short-tailed lines as defined below,
any collateral required to be posted may be subject to a one-year deferral from the date of the first

instance of a liability reserve entry as a result of a catastrophic loss from a named Hurricane. For

Page 9 of 21




these purposes, a short-tailed line of business is defined as any one of the following lines of
“business as reported on the NAIC annual financial statement:

Line 1 Fire

Line 2 Allied Lines

Line 3 Farmowners multiple peril

Line 4 Homeowners multiple peril

Line 5 Commercial multiple peril
| Line 9 Inland marine
Line 12 Earthquake
Lihe 21 Auto physical damage

(5) Nothing in this rule shall be construed to deny the ceding insurer the ability to take credit for

" reinsurance for the remainder of its liabilities with a cerﬁfied an-eligible-reinsurer so long as those -
amounts are secured with acceptable collateral pursuént to Section 624.610(4), F.S.

(6) In addition to the trust fund required under paragraph—(3)}e)-ef-Section 624.610(3)(c), -F.S.,
the Office sommissioner-shall permit an assuming insurer that maintains a trust fund in a qualified
U.S. United—States—financial institution, as that term is defined in paragraph—(8}(b}—of-Section
| 624.610(5)(b), F.S., for the payment of the valid claims of its U.S. United-States-cedent insurers and
their assigns and successors in interest to also maintain in a qualified U.S. United-States-financial
institution a trust fund constituting a trusteed amount at least equal fo the collateral required in
.accordance with subsection (4) of-thié rule to secure the liabilities attributable to U.S. United-States
cedent insurers under reinsurance policies (contracts) entered into or renewed by such assuming

insurer on or after the effective date of this rule or such other date as may be established in other

Page 10 of 21



- states for cedent insurers domiciled in such states, but only when maintenance of such a trust fund
serves to protect the interests of the public and the interests of insurer solvency.
(7} A ceding insurer may not take credit pursuant to this rule unless:

(a) The assuming insurer reinsurer-has been determined, by order of the Office-commissioner, to

be a certified an-eligible-reinsurer, pursuant to subsection (8) of this rule;
~ (b) The ceding insurer maintains satisfactory evidence that the certified eligible-reinsurer meets

the standards of solvency, including standards for capital adequacy, established by its domestic
regulator; and

(c) All reinsurance contracts between the ceding insurer and the certified eligible-reinsurer must
provide: |

1.-For an insolvency clause in conformance with Section 624.610(8), F.S.;

2. For a service of process clause in conformance with Section 624.610(3)(f1. and 2., -F.S.;and

3. For a submission to jurisdiction clause in conformance with Section 624.610(3)(f)1. and 2.,
F.S. | |

(8) Status as certified eligible-reinsurer:

(a) Application for a determinatioﬁ as a_certified an—eligible-reinsurer under this rule shall be
made by cover letter from the insurer requesting a finding of certification eligibility-as a reinsurer

pursuant to this rule and shall be filed electronically via the Office’s Online Company Admissions

system, “iApply,” located at http://www.floir.com/iportal. The cover letter shall be accompanied with

the following:

1. Audited financial statements_prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis for the last three (3) years as

filed with the insurer's domiciliary jurisdiction. With permission of the Office, an insurer may provide

audited International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) basis statements so long as they inélude :

Page 11 of 21



an audited reconciliation of equity and net income on a U.S. GAAP basis, or. with the permission of

the Office, audited- IERS statements with a reconciliation of equity and net income on a US. GAAP

basis certified by an officer of the companv—iFem—ineeth'reﬂ—e+Lier~the—lasi—3—yeaps,—wh,tshesqelqyesST

L)
D,
(D
P
Lr
)
1)
>
»
1)
)
)
L)
)
12
1)
»
)
)
B,
)
1)
1)
1)
1)
.
1)
12

2. An actuarial opinion as filed with the insurer's domigiliary jurisdiction:

3.2- Documentation,_in the form of a properly executed Form OIR-C1-2118, which is_hereby

adopted and incorporated by reference, that the insurer applisant-submits to the jurisdiction of the
U.S. United-States—courts, appoints an agent for service of pro.cess in Florida, and agrees to post

one hundred percent (100%) collateral for its Florida liabilities if it resists enforcement of a valid and

final judgment from a court in the United States, or if otherwise required by the Office pursuant to

this rule;

4. At the request of the Office, any other regulatory filing made with_the insurer's domiciliary

jurisdiction:;

5.3: Form OIR-C1-2117 (for property/casualty) or Form OIR-C1-2118 (for life and health), which

are herébv adopted and incorporated by reference. A—report-that-provides-information-to-the office

Page 12 of 21



6.4- A list of all disputed or overdue recoverables due to or claimed by ceding insurers, whether
or not the claims are in litigation or arbitration;

- 7.6: A certification from the domiciliary jurisdiction regulaterof the insurer that the company |s in

good standing and that the domiciliary jurisdiction regulater—will provide financial and -operational
information to the Office_and-

8. Any other information that the Office may reasonably deem appropriate to the application.

(b). Upon receipt of an application for a determination as a certified reinsurer. the Office shall post

notice on the Office's website. Such notice shall include instructions on how members of the public

may respond to the application. The Office shall not take final action on the application until at least

thirty (30) days after posting the notice required by this paragraph.
(c) b)The determination of eligibil'ity will be made by order issued exeeuted-by the Office
(g)(e_}'To become a certified an-eligible-reinsurer, the.insurer+einsurer, at a minimum:

1. Shall hold surplus in excess of $250 480-million. This requirement may also be satisfied by an

association _including incorporated and individual unincorporated underwriters having minimum

capital _and surplus equivalents (net of liabilities) of at least $250 million and a central fund

containing a balance of at least $250 million:

2. Shall be authorized in its domiciliary jurisdiction to assume the kind or kinds of reinsurance
ceded by the ceding insurer; and;
3. Shall be domiciled in a qualified an-eligiblejurisdiction as defined in subsection (9).

(e) Each certified reinsurer shall be rated on a legal entity basis, with due consideration being

given to the group rating where appropriate, except that an association including incorporated and

individual unincorporated und_erwriters that has been approved to do business as a single certified

Page 13 of 21



reinsurer may be evaluated on the basis of its group rating. Factors that may be considered as part

of the evaluation process include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. The certified reinsurer's financial strength rating from an acceptable rating agency. The

maximum rating that a certified reinsurer may be assigned will correspond to its financial strength

rating as _outlined in_subsection (4) of this rule. The Office shall use the lowest financial strength

rating received from a rating agency indicated in subsection (3)(a)-(e) of this rule in establishing the

maximum rating of a certified reinsurer. A failure to obtain or maintain at least two financial strength

- ratings frbm acceptable rating agencies pursuant to subsection (3) will result in_loss of eligibility for

certification;

2._The business practices of the certified reinsurer in dealing with its ceding insurers, including

its record of compliance with reinsurance contractual terms and obligations:

3. For certified reinsurers domicited in the U.S., a review of the most recent applicable NAIC

| Annual Statement Blank, either Schedule F (for property/casualty reinsurers) or Schedule S (for life

and health reinsurers);

4. The reputation of the certified reinsurer for prompt payment of claims under reinsurance

agreements, based on an analysis of ceding insurers’ Schedule F reporting of overdue reinsurance

recoverables, including the proportion of obligations that are more than ninety (90) days past due or

are _in_dispute, with specific attention given to obligations pavable to companies that are in

administrative supervision or receivership:

5. Regulatory actions against the certified reinsurer;

8. The liquidation priority of obligations to a ceding insurer in the certified reinsurer's domiciliary

jurisdiction in the context of an insolvency proceeding: and

Page 14 of 21



7. A certified reinsurer's participation in any solvent schemes of arrangement, or similar .

procedure, that involves U.S. ceding insurers. A certified reinsurer shall notify the Office prior to

“ participation in a solvent scheme of arrangement.

~ (Béey If the Office Commissioner-determines, based upon the material submitted, and any other
relevant information, that it is in the best interests of market stability and the solvency of ceding
insurers, the Office Gommissienerwill find, by order, that the insurer is a certified an—eligible
reinsurer and will set an amount of credit allowed for the reinsurer if lower than the amount set forth
in subsection (4).

(@) The Office shall publish and maintain a list of certified reinsurers on the Office’s website

. Such list shall disclose the rating assigned to the certified reinsurer pursuant to subsection (4) of this

rule,

(h){e} Every certified eligible-reinsurer shall file the following information annually with the Office

éiectronicéllv'via the Office’s Regulatory Electronic Filing System, “REFS.” located at

http://www floir.com/iportal, no later than July 1;en-the-anniversary-of the-ordergranting-iteligibility:

1. Form OIR-C1-2117 (for property/casualty) or Form OIR-C1-2118 (for life and heaith):

2. The report of the independent auditor on the financial statements of the insurance enterprise,

filed on a U.S. GAAP basis. If approved by the Office, the certified reinsurer may provide audited

IFRS basis statements so long as a reconciliation of equity and net income are provided on a U.S.

GAAP basis. The reconciliation of equity and net income to U.S. GAAP must either be audited or

certified by an officer of the company;

3. Actuarial opinion as filed with the certified reinsurer's domiciliary jurisdiction:

4. A statement from the certified reinsurer's domiciliary jurisdiction that the certified reinsurer is in

good standing and maintains capital in excess of the jurisdiction's highest regulatory action level:

Page 15 of 21



5.1- A statement certifying that there has been no change in the provisions of its domiciliary
license or any of its financial strength ratings, or a statement describing such changes and the
reasons thereforetherefor;

6.2- At the request of the Office, a copy of any regulatory filings made a“—ﬁnaneial—sta:temems

filed-with the certified reinsurer's domiciliary :unsdrctlomthew—dermemapwegwate;

7.3- Any change in its directors and officers;

8.4- An updated list of all disputed and overdue reinsurance claims regarding reinsun;ance
assumed from U-S—demestic ceding insurers; and

9.6 Any other information that the Office may require to assure market stability and the solvency

of ceding insurers.

()H A certified-An-eligible reinsurer must immediately-advise the Office_within ten (10) days of

any changes in its ratings assigned by rating agencies, erdomiciliary license status, or of any

requlaforv actions taken against the certified reinsurer. Such notice shall include a statement

- describing such actions and the reasons therefore.(j}g} At any time, if the Office Qem—m{rss-}ene{:
d_etermines that it is in the best interests of market stability and the solvency of ceding insurers, the
Office Gemmissieﬁer—will withdraw, by order, any determination of an insurer as a certified an
eligible-reinsurer or require the certified reinsurer to post additional collateral.

(Q(h}' If the rating of a certified an-eligible—reinsurer rises above that used by the Office
Commissioner-in jts his-or-her-determination of the credit allowed for the reinsurer, an affected party
may petition the Office Commissionerfor a redetermination of the credit allowed. If it is in the best
interests of market stability and the solvency of ceding insurers, the Office Commissienerwill raise

the credit allowed for the certified reinsurer.

(9) Status as a qualified an-eligible-jurisdiction:

Page 16 of 21



(a) The determination of a jurisdiction as a qualified an-eligible-jurisdiction is to be made by the
_Q_f@—@emm%ener No jurisdiction shall be determined to be a qualified an-eligible-jurisdiction
unless:

1. The insurance regulatory body of the jurisdiction agrees that it will provide information
requested by the Office regarding its certified eligible-domestic reinsurers; |
| 2. The Office has determined that the jurisdiction has a satisfactory structure and authority with
regard to solvency regulation, acceptable financial and operating standards for reinsurers in the
'd.omiciliéry jurisdiction, acceptable transparent financial reports filed in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and verifiable evidence of adequate and prompt enforcement of
yalid U.S. judgments or arbitration awards;

3. -The Office has determined that the history of performance _by reinsurers in the jurisdiction is
such that the insuring public will be served by a finding.of gualification-ekigibility;

4. For non-U.S, jurisdictions, the jurisdiction allows U.S. reinsurers_ access to the market of the
domiciliary jurisdiction on terms and conditions that are at least as favorable as those provided in
Florida law and regulations for unaccredited non-U.S. assuming insurers; and 7.

5. There is no other documented information that it would not serve the best interests of the
insuring public and the solvency of ceding insurers to make a finding of qualification-eligibility.

(b) If the NAIC issues findings that certain jurisdictions should be considered qualified eligible
jurisdictions, thé Office Gommissionershall, if it would serve the best interests of the insuring public
and the solvéﬁc’y of ceding insurers, make a determination that jurisdictions on the NAIC list are
qualified eligible-jurisdictions.

(c) A US. jurisdiction that meets the requirements for accreditation under the NAIC financial

standards and accreditation program shalt be recognized as a qualified Iiurisdiction.

Page 17 of 21



(d) The Office shall publish a list a jurisdictions that have been determined to be qualified.

- (e)e} If the Office Gemmissioner-determines that it is in the best interests of market stability and
the solvency qf ceding insurers, the Office Gommissioner-shall withdraw, by order, the determination
of a jurisdiction as a gualified an-eligible-jurisdiction.

(10)(a) If the rating of a certified an-sligible-reinsurer is below or falls below that required in

subsection (4) for the respective amount of credit, the_Qffice shall upon written notice assign a new

rating to the certified reinsurer in accordance with subsection (4) of this rule-existing-credit-to-the

ceding-insurer-shall-be-adjusted-accordingly. Notwithstanding the change or withdrawal of a certified
eligible—reinsurer's rating, the_Office—Commissioner, upon a determination that the interest of

ensuring market stability and the solvency of the ceding insurer requires |t shall, upon request by
the ceding insurer, authorize the ceding ‘}hsﬁrer to continue to take credit for the reinsurance
recoverable, or part thereof, relating to the rating change or withdrawal for some specified period of
time following such change or withdrawal, unless the reinsurance recoverable is deemed
 uncollectible. |

(b) If the ceding insurer's experience in collecting recoverables from any certified eligible
reinsurer indicates that the credit to the ceding insurer should be lower, the ceding insurer shall
notify the Osffice of this.

(c) The Office shall have the authority to suspend, revoke, or otherwise modify a certified

reinsurer’s certification at any time if the certified reinsurer fails to meet its obligations or security

requirements u_nder this section, or if other financial or operating results of the certified reinsurer, or

documented significant delays in payment by the certified reinsurer, lead the Office to reconsider the

certified reinsurer’s ability or willingness to meet its contractual obligations.

Page 18 of 21



(d) If the rating of a certified reinsurer is upgraded by the Office, the certified reinsurer may meet

the_security requirements applicable to its new rating on a prospective basis, but the Office shall

require the certified reinsurer to post security under the previously applicable security requirements -

as to all contracts in force on or before the effective date of the upgraded rating. If the rating of a

certified reinsurer is downgraded by the Office, the Office shall require the certified reinsurer to meet

the security requirements applicable to its new rating for all business it has assumed as a certified

reinsurer.

(e) Upon revocation of the certification of a_certified reinsurer by the Office, the assuming insurer

- shall be required to post security in accordance with Section 624.610, F.S., in order for the ceding

insurer to continue to take credit for reinsurance ceded to the assuming insurer.

(11) The ceding insurer shall give immediate notice to the Office and provide for the necessary
increased reserves with respect to any reinsurance recoverables applicable, in the event:

(a) That obligations of a certified an-eligible-reinsurer for which credit for reinsurance was taken
undef this rule' are more than n_inity_(QO) days past due and not in dispute; or |

(b) That there is any indication or evidence that any certified eligible-reinsurer, with whom the
ceding insurer has a contract, fails to substantially comply with the solvency requirements under the
laws of its domiciliary jurisdiction.

- (12) The Office Gemmissioner-shall disallow all or a portion of the credit based on a review of the
ceding insurer's reinsurance program, the financial conditibn of the certified eligible-reinsurer, the
certified eligible—reinsurer's claim payment history, or any other relevant information when such
action is in the best interests of market stability and the solvency of the ceding insurer. At any time,
the Office Commissionermay request additional information from the certified eligible-reinsurer. The

failure of a certified an—eligible—reinsurer to cooperate with the Office is grounds for the Office

Page 19 of 21



Commissionerto withdraw the status of the insurer as a certified an—eligible-reinsurer or for the
disallowance or reduction of the credit granted under this rule.

(13)(a) Upon the entry of an order of rehabilitation, liquidation, or conservation against the ced-ing
insurer, pursuant to Chapter 631, Part |, F.S., or the equivalent law of another jurisdiction, écertified

| an-eligible-reinsurer, within thirty (30) days of the order, shall fund the entire amount that the ceding
insurer has taken, as an asset or deduction from reserves, for reinsurance recoverable from the

- certified eligible-reinsurer. The insurer may request a variance and waiver from this provision as
provided by Section 120.542, F.S.

(b) If a certified an-eligible-reinsurer fails fo comply on a timely basis with paragraph (a) of this
subsei_:tion_, the Office Gemmissionershall withdraw the reinsurer’s gertification eligibility-under this
rule. | |

(174) The Office : Wmay, by order, determine that credit shall not be allowed to any

' ceding insurer for reinsured risk pursuant to this rule if it appears to the Office_Commissionerthat
granting of the credit to the ceding insurer would not be in the public interest or serve the best
interests of the ceding insurer's solvency.

(15) Nothing in this rule prohibits a ceding insurer and a reinsurer from entering into agreements
establishing collateral requirements in excess of those set forth in this rule.

(16) A ceding insurer shall notify the Office within thirty (30) days after reinsurance recoverables

from any single assuming insurer, or group of assuming insurers, exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the

ceding insuret’s last reported surplus to policyholders, or after it is determined that reinsurance

recoverables from any single assuming insurer, or group of assuming insurers, is likely to exceed

this limit. The notification shall demonstrate that the exposure is safely managed by the domestic

ceding insurer.

Page 20 of 21



(17) A ceding insurer shall notify the Office within thirty (30) days after ceding to any single

assuming insurer, or group of agssuming insurers, more than twenty percent (20%) of the ceding

insurer's gross written premium in the prior calendar vear, or after it is determined that the

reinsurance ceded to any single assuming insurer, or group of assuming insurers, is likely to exceed

this limit. The notification shall demonstrate that the exposure is safely managed by the ceding

insurer.

(18) . Forms adopted in this rule are available on the Office's web site located at

hitp://ww . floir.com.

Speciﬁc Authority 624.308, 624.610(14) FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.610 FS. History—

New 10-29-08_Amended

Page 21 of 21



FORM CR-1

CERTIFICATE OF CERTIFIED REINSURER

{name of officer) - (title of officer)

of _ ' , the assuming insurer
(name of assuming insurer)

under a reinsurance agreement with one or more insurers domiciled in
in order to be considered for approval in this state, hereby certify that . (name of state)

(“Assuming Insurer”):

(name of assuming insurer)

1. Submits to the jurisdiction of any court of competent jurisdiction in

(ceding insurer’s state of domicile)
for the adjudication of any issues arising out of the reinsurance agreement, agrees to comply with all
requirements necessary to give such court jurisdiction, and will abide by the final decision of such court
or any appellate court in the event of an appeal. Nothing in this paragraph constitutes or should be
understood to constitute a waiver of Assuming Insurer’s rights to commence an action in any court of
competent jurisdiction in the United States, to remove an action to a United States District Court, or to
seck a transfer of a case to another court as permitted by the laws of the United States or of any state in
the United States. This paragraph is not intended to conflict with or override the obligation of the parties
to the reinsurance agreement to arbitrate their disputes if such an obligation is created in the agreement,

2. Designates the Insurance Commissioner of

(ceding insurer’s state of domicile)
as its lawful attorney upon whom may be served any lawful process in any action, suit or proceeding
arising out of the reinsurance agreement instituted by or on behalf of the ceding insurer.

3. Agrees to provide security in an amount equal to 100% of liabilities attributable to U.S. ceding insurers
if it resists enforcement of a final U.S. judgment or properly enforceable arbitration award.

4. Agrees to provide notification within 10 days of any regulatory actions taken against it, any change in
the provisions of its domiciliary license or any change in its rating by an approved rating agency,
including a statement describing such changes and the reasons therefore.

5. Agrees to annually file information comparable to relevant provisions of the NAIC financial statement
for use by insurance markets in accordance with Rule 690-144.007(8)}(h), F.A.C..

6. Agrees to annually file the report of the independent auditor on the financial statements of the
insurance enterprise.

7. Agrees to annually file audited financial statements, regulatory filings, and actuarial opinion in
accordance with Rule 690-144.007(8)(h), F.A.C..

8. Aéfées to annually file an updated list of all disputed and overdue reinsurance claims regarding
reinsurance assumed from U.S. domestic ceding insurers.

NAIC Form CR-1
OIR-C1-2116 (new XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 1 0of2



9. Is in good standing as an insurer or reinsurer with the supervisor of its domiciliary jurisdiction.

Dated:

{name of assuming insurer)

BY:

{name of officer)

(title of officer)

NAIC Form CR-1
OIR-C1-2116 (new XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 2 of 2



FORM CR-F

INDEX
INSTRUCTIONS

Part 1 — Assumed Reinsurance — Property/Casualty Business .. ..............

Part 2 — Ceded Reinsurance — Property/Casualty Business. .. ................
FORMS

Part- 1 — Assumed Reinsurance as of December 31, Current Year

Part 2 — Ceded Reinsurance as of December 31, Current Year

- NAIC Form CR-F

OIR-C1-2117 (new XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 1 of 8



FORM CR-F —PART 1

ASSUMED REINSURANCE — PROPERTY/CASUALTY BUSINESS
AS OF DECEMBER 31 (MOST RECENT YEAR-END)

Form CR-F Part 1 must be reported by an assuming insurer upon initial application for status as a Certified Reinsurer, and on
an annual basis thereafter so long as the Certified Reinsurer maintains certification. Amounts are to be reported in U.S.
dollars with thousands omitted. All dates reported in Form CR-F must be in the format MM/DD/YYYY. For example, the
date December 13, 2011 should be reported as 12/13/2011. The Certified Reinsurer’s rating and collateral requirement, as

assigned by the certifying state, and the effective date of such rating, must be included on this form with respect to each filing
that is submitted subsequent to certification,

Part  provides information with respect to ‘reinsurance assumed by the Certified Reinsurer (or applicant) from ceding
insurers domiciled in the U.S. and abroad. Part 1 data may be reported on an aggregate basis as opposed to reporting data
applicable to each individual ceding insurer. However, reporting entities are required to segregate and subtotal this aggregate
information in accordance with the categories listed below, as applicable.*

*Note: Additional Instructions for Assuming Insurers Subject to Filing Schedule F Part 1 of the NAIC Annual Statement —
In cettain cases, a non-U.S. domiciled assuming insurer is required to file annually a Schedule F Part 1 from the NAIC
Annual Statement. The Schedule F Part 1 filing is submitted to a U.S. state in which the assuming insurer maintains a trust
“fund in a qualified U.S. financial institution for the payment of the valid claims of its U.S. ceding insurers with respect to
U.S. reinsurance it has assumed under a status other than as a Certified Reinsurer. The purpose of the Schedule F Part 1 filing
is to enable the commissioner of the state in which the trust is domiciled to determine the sufficiency of the trust fund, and its
Form CR-F filing does not affect this Schedule F Part | filing requirement. The assuming insurer’s Schedule F Part 1 should
only include U.S. reinsurance it has assumed that is supported by this trust.

In such cases, the assuming insurer may exclude from Form CR-F Part 1 U.S. reinsurance assumed that is reported in its
Schedule F Part 1. However, the assuming insurer must attach a copy of its Schedule F Part 1 filing with its Form CR-F, and
must clearly indicate on Form CR-F Part 1 that its U.S. reinsurance assumed is reported in this manner (i.e., its Form CR-F
Part 1 includes non-U.S. reinsurance assumed and U.S. reinsurance assumed under its Certificd Reinsurer status, while its
attached Schedule F Part 1 includes U.S. reinsurance it has assumed under a status other than as a Certified Reinsurer).

Group or Category _ ' ‘ Line Number
Reinsurance Assumed from Affiliated Ceding Insurers
U.S. Affiliated ........ooeoe........ D eeettiereeerrer e ee e ae e et et Rt oA Ae b s s R R eAeE s as AR R Ae s et et S eeA A e b ebae bbbt bt e et ane 0199999
NOD=U.S. AFFIHAIEA . .c.oneeeeceeee ettt et e et v o v e e e bbb bbb et et srsnneneas 0299999
TOtal AFFIHALEA .........oooieerree e sttt e sas R bbb bt et et es b mes et re s emenen 0399999
Reinsurance Assumed from Unaffiliated Ceding Insurers
TS, UNAETHAIEA ..ottt et ec et st s es s s s e A a A be bbbt s bttt e e an 0499999
NON=U.S. Unaffilated ...t sr e st s e ettt b e s en s s sba et s eas 0599969
Total Unaffiliated .......c.coiiieriiriircecse ittt st et ees ettt et et b e e ra e e 0699999

......................................................................................................................................... ... 0799999

Column Descriptions

Column 5 - Assumed Reinsurance Premium

Column 6 - Reinsurance on Paid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (LAE)

Report losses and loss adjustment expenses due and payable to ceding insurers.

Column 7 - Reinsurance on Known Case Losses and LAE

Report known case reserves for losses and LAE assumed from ceding insurers.

NAIC Form CR-F
OIR-C1-2117 (new XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 2 of 8



Column 8

|

Totals of Columns 6 + 7 for each category.

Column 9 - Contingent Commissions Payable
Report profit commissions generated from assumed reinsurance contracts due to ceding insurers.
Report commissions net of return profit commissions. Negative commissions are possible, (i.e., when a
contingent commission is receivable.)

Column 10 - Assumed Premiums Receivable
Report receivable amounts net of commissions payable

Column 12 -~ Funds Held By or Deposited with Reinsured Companies

" Column 13 — Letters of Credit Posted
Column 14 , - Amount of Assets Pledged or Compensating Balances to Secure Letters of Credit
Column 15— Amount of Assets Pledged or Collateral Held in Trust

This column reflects amounts that are not otherwise reflected in Column 12 of this schedule that are
under the control of ceding insurance companies.

NAIC Form CR-F
OIR-C1-2117 (new XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 3 of §



FORM CR-F — PART 2

CEDED REINSURANCE — PROPERTY/CASUALTY BUSINESS
AS OF DECEMBER 31 (MOST RECENT YEAR-END)

Form CR-F Part 2 must be reported by an assuming insurer upon initial application for status as a Certified Reinsurer, and on
an annual basis thereafter so long as the Certified Reinsurer maintains certification. Amounts are to be reported in U.S,
dollars with thousands omitted. All dates reported in Form CR-F must be in the format MM/DD/YYYY. For example, the
date December 13, 2011 should be reported as 12/13/2011. The Certified Reinsurer’s rating and collateral requirement, as -
assigned by the certifying state, and the effective date of such rating, must be included on this form with respect to each filing
that is submitted subsequent to certification.

Part 2 provides information with respect to reinsurance ceded or retroceded by a Certified Reinsurer (or applicant) to
assuming insurers domiciled in the U.S. and abroad. Reporting entities are required to provide assuming insurer-specific data
on reinsurance ceded for a minimum of the top ten assuming insurers as measured by reinsurance recoverables, Assuming
insurer-specific data must be reported for additional assuming insurers (i.e., beyond the top ten) only to the extent necessary
to ensure that the assuming insurer-specific reporting represents at least 75% of all reinsurance recoverables due. Only
Columns 1, 3, 4, 6 and 15 (in total) are required (o be completed with respect to the assuming insurer-specific data applicable
to the top ten assuming insurers (or additional assuming insurers to meet 75% minimum). Part 2 data applicable to all other
assuming insurers may be reported on an aggregate basis; however, each of the columns from 6 through 19 must be
completed for the aggregated data. Reporting entities are required to subtotal this information, including both individual and
aggregate data, into the categories listed below, as applicable.

Group or Category Line Number
Reinsurance Ceded/Retroceded to Affiliated Assuming Insurers
LS. ATTIHAIE ..ot et r e b st st s b srae et s e bes et et s etae e s 0199999
NON-ULS. ATTIHALEA ..ottt et ee e st sttt st et s st saserer b et et e e reenssseas 0299999
TOLAl ATTHHALEA ...t se e s st bt bbb bbb et e s e s e st st st et eesaere e rn st enes 0399999
Reinsurance Ceded/Retroceded to Unaffiliated Assuming Insurers
ULS. UNAfTIHALEA coovivniisisniii v et e e ssa e ea s bas s bt £ ettt e em et et et an e s 0499999
NON-U.S. UNaffIHated ..o e se sttt st s bbb s emee e e e eeennnasnetase e e s eans 0599999
Total UNAfTIHAIE .....oviuiiiitiiit e et st bttt e esrenesessees e e st e s e e e s e naen 0699999
Total REINSUIANCE CEUBM........c.c ittt er e e s b e sttt sas st e e se st se s et e et s e seen 0799999

Column Descriptions

Column 1 - Company Code or ID Number

The U.S. Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) must be reported for each U.S. domiciled
insurer and 1.8, branch of an alien insurer. For insurers domiciled in non-U.S. jurisdictions, report the
entity’s national identification number as issued by its domestic jurisdiction. Reinsurance
intermediaries should not be listed, as Form CR-F is intended to identify only risk-bearing entities.

Column 3 - Name of Reinsurer

Column 4

Domiciliary Jurisdiction

Report the two-character postal code abbreviation for the domiciliary jurisdiction. A comprehensive
listing of postal code abbreviations for foreign countries is attached to these instructions. For postal
code abbreviations of foreign countries not found in the appendix, use the code found at;

www.nationsonline.org/oneworld/countrycodes.him

If'a reinsurer has merged with another entity, report the domiciliary jurisdiction of the surviving entity.

NAIC Form CR-F
OIR-C1-2117 (new XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 4 of 8



Column 5 -

Column 6 -
Column 7 -
Colamn 8 -
Column 9 -
Column 10 -
Column 11 -
Column 13 -

Column 14  —

Column 15 -
Column 16 —

Coluron 17 —

NAIC Form CR-F

Reinsurance Contracts Ceding 75% or More Direct Premiums Written

For the data reported by individual assuming insurer, a separate entry should be made to identify each’
individual contract (except those listed under “Exceptions” below) which provides for the cession of
75% or more of direct or assumed premiums written by the reporting entity under such cession during
the year. Such line item entries should be identified by inserting a 2 in this column. The reinsurance
transactions so identified shall include both treaty and facultative cessions of direct or assumed
business written by the reporting entity.

Exceptions; Intercompany reinsurance transactions with affiliates.

Reinsurance transactions involving any group, association, pool, or organization
of insurers that engage in joint underwriting activities and which are subject to
examination by any state regulatory authority or which operate pursuant to any
state or federal statutory or administrative authorization.

Any reinsurance transaction in which the annual gross premium ceded is less
than 5% of policyholder surplus.

Reinsurance transactions involving captive insurance companies,
Reinsurance Premiums Ceded
Reinsurance Recoverable on Paid Losses
Reinsurance Recoverable on Paid LAE
Reinsurance Recoverable on Known Case Loss Reserves
Reinsurance Recoverable on Known Case LAE Reserves
Reinsurance Recoverable on IBNR Loss Reserves
Reinsurance Recoverable on Unearned Premiums

Contingent Commissions

Include: Contingent commissions receivable from a reinsurer. Regular commissions
should be netted with ceded balances payable in Column 16,

If Column 14 is less than zero, report the amount in Column 17.
Total Columns 7 through 14
Ceded Balances Payable

Other Amounts Due to Reinsurers

Both Column 16 and Column 17 are liabilities owed to the reinsurer,

Deduct: Reinsurance premiums paid by a ceding company prior to the effective date of
the contract,

Exclude: Funds held by company under reinsurance treaties, which are included in
Column 19.

Items entered in Column 17 may represent miscellancous balances owed: by the reinsured to the
reinsurer on ceded transactions.

OIR-C1-2117 (new XX/XX)

Rule 690-144,007

Page 5 of 8



Column 18 - Net Amount Recoverable from Reinsurers

Column 19 - Funds Held By Company Under Reinsurance Treaties

NAIC Form CR-F
OIR-C1-2117 {new XX/XX)
Rule 690-144,007 Page 6 of 8



830 L o8ed L00'PF1-069 2Ny
(XX/XX Mau) LTIZ-1D-9I0
J-9D mwioq DIVN
STe30], 6666666
: Hpax) Jo
wsnay, SIONT I009g pasog soraeduny) WHTelg afqeATRYy a[qedey L+ 980D YT sesmodxy wrermeg oRIpSLIP pernsursy Taqump
mPRHE 0} sadweTeg 1IpaI] peInsTIY pawxesur) STMITRAJ SUOTSSTIIIO) PUR S350 JoRTISHIpY PHLENSSY AreroTmocy 3o SN f1rs
exere[es | Augeswadwon 30 TqITAL pammssy Juadunue)) PSR TWAOUI 50T o apod
Topaspsd | 0 padpold ST paytsodaq pue Auedwop)
$I9SEY IS5V 0 &g $9650T PTBd
JoEnomy | J0 4Oty PIRH SPURg . R .
- 2" g, 71 11 o1 6 T o g ¥ g 1

(Pa1ITIm() 000) ITedX JUSLINY) ‘T¢ .Hmpd.um.omﬂ JO se 20URINSUISY PIWNSSY

1 19vd J-80 W0y




LOPY1I-069 3y

gJo g a5eg
(XX/XX M3u) LTIT-1D-9I0
© o 4-¥D mIog DIVN
STEI0L B666666
samBaI], 1F mﬂﬁwwuo aqeded STEI6Y, sucwepmmon, | SUMTWeIJ | santesoyy | seaTessy | saazesyy | saakesay V1 sa580°] pepep menTm TamsTRY TaqEmN
souemsumy | smomsuy | oo | seouereg 1 JupRuTiuery powmEaul} v 5507 TyTesED | S50 esed RS preg STRTmRL] sTmmmRLg HeYoTpSTNL b " M_u
Tapap) woig: amomy | PR | wEnorg UNET UNST Tamowy 0wy BoUEIMSTIOY oz Lreymiogy smey 103900
© Auedwory NqeIA00Ig 20 L °STOD 30 DIOTA IO wo)
&g Junomry %81 Jupa]
PIPHE spong BN SREZUOY
- AT 91 a1 ¥1 €1 [44 TI 01 6 e L VUBINSURY .
61 .F g1 S[qEAE ] SeueIns U o) ARISA0SY] N0TRIMSTRY 9 g 14 £ 4 T
(PeNTW(Q (00) IBo FUALMY) ‘TE 19qUWN03(J JO SB SIUBMSUISY PIP3)
g LAVd - 4-J0 wiog .




FORM CR-8

INSTRUCTIONS

Part 1, Section | — Reinsurance Assumed Life Insurance Annuities, Deposit Funds

and Other Liabilities Without Life or Disability Contingencies, and Related Benefits . . . .2

Part 1, Section 2 — Reinsurance Assumed Accident and Health Insurance. . ............ 4

Part 2 — Reinsurance Recoverable on Paid and Unpaid Losses. ...................... 6

Part 3, Section 1 — Reinsurance Ceded Life Insurance, Annuities, Deposit Funds

and Other Liabilities Without Life or Disability Contingencies, and Related Benefits . . .. 8

Part 3, Section 2 — Reinsurance Ceded Accident and Health Insurance. . .............. 11
FORMS

Part 1, Section 1 — Reinsurance Assumed Life Insurance Annuities, Deposit Funds

and Other Liabilities Without Life or Disability Contingencies, and Related Benefits. . .. 14

Part 1, Section 2 — Reinsurance Assumed Accident and Health Insurance. ............ 15

Part 2 — Reinsurance Recoverable on Paid and Unpaid Losses. . .. ...... .o verinnnn, 16

Part 3, Section 1 — Reinsurance Ceded Life Insurance, Annuities, Deposit Furids

and Other Liabilities Without Life or Disability Contingencies, and Related Benefits . . . ., 17

Part 3, Section 2 — Reinsurance Ceded Accident and Health Insurance. .. ............. 18

NAIC Form CR-S
OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)
Rule 690-144,007 Page 1 of 18



FORM CR-S — PART 1 — SECTION 1

REINSURANCE ASSUMED LIFE INSURANCE, ANNUITIES, DEPOSIT FUNDS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
WITHOUT LIFE OR DISABILITY CONTINGENCIES, AND RELATED BENEFITS LISTED BY REINSURED

COMPANY AS OF DECEMBER 31, (MOST RECENT YEAR-END)

Form CR-S Part 1, Section 1 must be reported by an assuming insurer upon initial application for status as a Certified
Reinsurer, and on an annual basis thereafter so long as the Certified Reinsurer maintains certification. Amounts are to be
reported in U.S. dollars with thousands omitted. All dates reported in Form CR-S must be in the format MM/DD/YYYY. For
example, the date December 13, 2011 should be reported as 12/13/2011. The Certified Reinsurer’s rating and collateral
requirement, as assigned by the certifying state, and the effective date of such rating, must be included on this form with
respect to each filing that is submitted subsequent to certification.

Part 1, Section 1 provides information on ail reinsurance assumed for life insurance, annuities, deposit fund and other
liabilities without life or disability contingencies, and related benefits from ceding insurers domiciled in the U.S. and abroad.
~ Part 1, Section 1 data may be repotted on an aggregate basis as opposed to reporting data applicable to each individual ceding
insurer. However, reporting entities are required to segregate and subtotal this aggregate information in accordance with the
categories listed below, as applicable.*

*Note: Additional Instructions for Assuming Insurers Subject to Filing Schedule 8 Part 1 of the NAIC Annual Statement —
In certain cases, a non-U.S. domiciled assuming insurer is required to file annually a Schedule S Part 1 from the NAIC

Annual Statement. The Schedule S Part 1 filing is submitted to a U.S. state in which the assuming insurer maintains a trust
fund in a gualified U.S. financial institution for the payment of the valid claims of its U.S. ceding insurers with respect to
U.S. reinsurance it has assumed under a status other than as a Certified Reinsurer. The purpose of the Schedule S Part 1 filing
is to enable the commissioner of the state in which the trust is domiciled to determine the sufficiency of the trust fund, and its
Form CR-S filing does not affect this Schedule S Part 1 filing requirement. The assuming insurer’s Schedule S Part 1 should
only include 1.8. reinsurance it has assumed that is supported by this trust.

In such cases, the assuming insurer may exclude from Form CR-S Part 1 U.S. reinsurance assumed that is reported in its
Schedule S Part 1. However, the assuming insurer must attach a copy of its Schedule S Part 1 filing with its Form CR-S, and
must clearly indicate on Form CR-S Part 1 that its U.S. reinsurance assumed is reported in this manner (i.e., its Form -CR-S
Part 1 includes non-U.8, reinsurance assumed and U.S. reinsurance assumed under its Certified Reinsurer status, while its
attached Schedule s Part 1 includes U.S. reinsurance it has assumed under a status other than as a Certified Reinsurer).

Group or Category Line Number
General Account
Affiliates
LS. ATTITALES ..ovveveitcietii st ie ettt e e s s e e eere s e reestaseer e saser s e e atsbeenb e e eaen et e smnesesanteatent st nerasessres 0199999
NON-UL S, ATTIHELES iiveeiiiiiiiiie it s st re s st e ass s er b e e e e e eeeeeeresaess et enanssasnssnesntatessmssene 0296999
TOMAL ATTILIALES 1..veivvss i seris e cesin e seesee e e s e bbb b s saa e st e st e bt aemeee e teeeeeeenaesreanseseenbonaaraten ores 0399969
Non-Affiliates
LS, NN ATIALES .veveeiie i et ee e et sssae st e et s eneesse e e sneeb e st sanesesneatesenretesenes 0499999
NOTUL S, IO AT T IALES .ooiiiecerieccre it r e et e st s cnrer e e s ees e bensareset et s saesan st eseeatnsartanesones 0599999
TO Al NN AT IALES ..ot er e e s et ereeebeennaseansese st sateseentsbeanteesassestsestannrsos 0699999
Total General ACCOUNL .....oviiiicicciiitiiecet e e rvs e erssssrae s esnebesasre st eeseesnesseeeteneesessrsressssstasssssssscreesaressnes (1 T9DO00
Separate Accounts
Affiliates
LS, ATTIIHALES 1vovviiiiriii it stes e sse e ra e et e e bt e et et et eee e se e e e e et e e eataentatesaebesresseeaseseeatesaseesstnmsson 0899999
TOMEUL S, ALTIIIALES 1vueieeeresi et ee st ittt st st e e e e et eseemt s ee st sreensasnsstesaeaseeassreeaseseateseestertseses sees 0999999
TOTAL ATTTHIATES 1oviive ettt ettt et e et e et e st e saesber e e b eeneesnasnes soesesnteseenteseansesennsseneessbesesen on 1099999
Non-Affiliates . . L
LS, NN AT T LIRS 1 vveveer ittt eeteseeseee e e setsaab e e masassasesaretesmeassereneeseananesreseteeesresss 1 199999
Non-U.S. NOB-ATFIIIALES vttt s s sba b en s s s sr b s e se et st ens e e 1299999
TOtA] NN AT I IAEES ..vveeurireeee ittt s s e e essessn e s b s abesbesatesateseanameereesnesrnessetesssnsse 1399999

NAIC Form CR-8
OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)
Rule 690-144,007 Page 2 of 18



TOtal BEPAratE ACCOUNLS. .. ...t eeciecvre e erereree e bbbt b bt st ree e sh bbb £ e bbbt e E e bt bbb e e et 1499999

Total U.S, (Sum of 0199999, 3499999, (899999, 1 199999)......coriiinmrmrmrer e nes e nence s sesscsessssesasa e s e 1599999
Total Non-U.S. (Sum of 0299999, 0599999, 0999959, 1299999).....cvumimmmiiiiimiiiiisiicii e, 1699999
Total (Sum of 1599999 and 1699999) ... ettt ettt s e an e 1799999

Column Descriptions

Column 7 - Amount in Force at End of Year

For catastrophe-reinsurance (CAT), disability reinsurance (DIS), accidental death benefit reinsurance.
(ADB) and annuity reinsurance (ACO and AMCO), leave this column blank.

Column 9 - Premiums

For depbsit funds and other liabilities without life or disability contingencies, leave this column blank.

Column 10 - Reinsurance Payéble on Paid and Unpaid Losses

For deposit funds and other liabilities without life or disability contingencies, leave this column blank.

Column 11 - Modified Coinsurance Reserve

Report the amount of reserves held by the ceding company under modified coinsurance contracts.
Include separate accounts modified coinsurance reserves.

Column 12 — Funds Withheld Under Coinsurance

Report the amount of funds withheld by the ceding company on coinsurance contracts.

NAIC Form CR-S
OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 3 of 18



FORM CR-S —PART 1 - SECTION 2

REINSURANCE ASSUMED ACCIDENT AND HEALTH INSURANCE LISTED BY REINSURED COMPANY
AS OF DECEMBER 31, MOST RECENT YEAR-END)

Form CR-S Part 1, Section 2 must be reported by an assuming insurer upon initial application for status as a Certified
Reinsurer, and on an annual basis thereafter so long as the Certified Reinsurer maintains certification. Amounts are to be
reported in U.S. dollars with thousands omitted. All dates reported in Form CR-S must be in the format MM/DD/YYYY. For
example, the date December 13, 2011 should be reported as 12/13/2011. The Certified Reinsurer’s rating and collateral
requirement, as assigned by the certifying state, and the effective date of such rating, must be included on this form with
respect to each filing that is submitted subsequent to certification.

Part 1, Section 2 provides information on all reinsurance assumed for accident and health insurance from ceding insurers
domiciled in the U.S. and abroad. Amounts are to be reported in U.S. dollars with thousands omitted. Part 1, Section 2 data
may be reported on an aggregate basis as opposed to reporting data applicable to each individual ceding insurer. However,

reporting entities are required to segregate and subtotal this aggregate information in accordance with the categories listed
below, as applicable. *

*Note: Additional Instructions for Assuming Insurers Subject to Filing Schedule S Part 1 of the NAIC Annual Statement —
In certain cases, a non-U.S. domiciled assuming insurer is requitred to file annually a Schedule S Part 1 from the NAIC
Annual Statement. The Schedule S Part 1 filing is submitted to a U.S. state in which the assuming insurer maintains a trust
fund in a qualified U.S. financial institution for the payment of the valid claims of its U.S. ceding insurers with respect to
U.S. reinsurance it has assumed under a status other than as a Certified Reinsurer, The purpose of the Schedule S Part 1 filing
is to enable the commissioner of the state in which the trust is domiciled to determine the sufficiency of the trust fund, and its
Form CR-S filing does not affect this Schedule S Part 1 filing requirement. The assuming insurer’s Schedule S Part 1 should
only include U.8. reinsurance it has assumed that is supported by this trust.

In such cases, the assuming insurer may exclude from Form CR-S Part 1 U.S, reinsurance assumed that is reported in its
Schedule S Part 1. However, the assuming insurer must attach a copy of its Schedule S Part 1 filing with its Form CR-S, and
must clearly indicate on Form CR-S Part 1 that its U.S. reinsurance assumed is reported in this manner (i.e., its Form CR-8
Part 1 includes non-U.S. teinsurance assumed and U.S. reinsurance assumed under its Certified Reinsurer status, while its
attached Schedule s Part 1 includes U.S. reinsurance it has assumed under a status other than as a Certified Reinsurer).

Group or Category : ' Line Number
Reinsurance Assumed from Affiliated Ceding Insurers
TS, ATTIAIEM .eveeiee i eceiniee e ena e ste e st e tsterese e tese e e et e s e s s s e snaresess bt aressRsasebsabsbebs b b ebbs s b it s o404 b b arrnresnnann 0199999
Non-U.S. Affiliated......cccrrrerrererrnreerereennnn B OO OO U Uy OT T OO ETOTOTOUOOTOTRUOUTPU v s 0299999
TOtal ATTIHALEA ......ceeeieieeiee et r et ar e es b b eraeaseaRas e b e bR e A ba b e bR b e R b Esa e Rt et s sa s mssnbesbebamensesenrasn 0359999
Reinsurance Assumed from Unaffiliated Ceding Insurers '
LS, UNAffIHAIEA 1ovovisiirisiiiiiiiiii e sases st rese s e e en s st snsna s s re e s s sttt b s en s nn e 04999599
Non-U.S, UnaffIlALEA ...voveiiieciec et cnrieirsse e sresesssssn e ssnsns st ves ebs e e sbas s reetenssssesen 0599999
TOLA] UNATTITIAIEA .....ceneveceeiece st b sae s sb s s s st b b be e bbbt bbb st st s s e s e esesseen s 0699999
Total REINSUIANCE ASSUINEW 1veuvreiitiiiriiietiiieieeiieiessessseeereetessssaresaessatsesassssasstresasssastasssesatssasesatastetesetebeesmsaeestetarssseeesess o (799999

Column Descriptions

Colummn 7 - Assumed Reinsurance Premiums

Column 8 - Unearned Assumed Reinsurance Premiums

Column 9 - Reserve Liability Other Than For Unearned Premiums
Column 10 - Reinsurance Payable on Paid and Unpaid Losses

NAIC Form CR-S
OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 4 of 18



Column 11 - Modified Coinsurance Reserve
Report the amount of the reserves held by the ceding company under modifiéd coinsurance contracts.
Column 12 — Funds Withheld Under Coinsurance

Report the amount of funds withheld by the ceding company on coinsurance contracts.

NAIC Form CR-S
OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 5 of 18



FORM CR-S —PART 2

REINSURANCE RECOVERABLE ON PAID AND UNPAID LLOSSES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, (MOST RECENT YEAR-END)

Form CR-S Part 2 must be reported by an assuming insurer upon initial application for status as a Certified Reinsurer, and on
an annual basis thereafter so long as the Certified Reinsurer maintains certification. Amounts are to be reported in U.S.
dollars with thousands omitted. All dates reported in Form CR-S must be in the format MM/DD/YYYYY. For example, the
date December 13, 2011 should be reported as 12/13/2011. The Certified Reinsurer’s rating and collateral requirement, as
. assigned by the certifying state, and the effective date of such rating, must be included on this form with respect to each filing
that is submitted subsequent to certification.

Part 2 provides information with respect to reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses from assuming insurers
domiciled in the U.S. and abroad. Reporting entities are required to provide assuming insurer-specific data on reinsurance
ceded for a minimum of the top ten assuming insurers as measured by reinsurance recoverables. Assuming insurer-specific
data must be reported for additional assuming insurers (i.e., beyond the top ten) only to the extent necessary to ensure that the
assuming insurer-specific reporting represents at least 75% of all reinsurance recoverables due. Reporting entities are
required to subtotal this information, including both individual and aggregate data, into the categories listed below, as

applicable. :
Group or Category Line Number
Life and Annuity
. Affiliates
ULS. ATTIHALES ovviviiei ittt e 0199999
NON-U.S, ATFIHALES v bt tes 0295999
TOtAl ATTIIALES c1evviceeceeeeeee et et s s s e e ert st e sresr e renb s et e rabenteva st esatsenenrensanbeseteteneraesanes 0399999
Non-Affiliates
LES. NON-ATTIIBLES 1.ecvrrarerrieisceierssesesie e es bbb s b s st st bsbass s s s a b bbs bbb abet et berm e et entasas 0499999
NON-ULS, NOT-ATTTIIAIES . civiiee e et bbb s eeaa st saba s st ebesss e reaeeen et ereeereenrresnns 0599999
TOLA] NOM-ATTIAIES 11ttt s et e s s e s ot a b oat s st e st e st e e reeerererreannes S 0699999
Total Life and AnNUItY .....ccooevviinccimre et e OO 0799999
Accident and Health
Affiliates )
LS ATTIHALES 1vvvieeisisiniiiir i issiise s e s s e b e s e esan st saber e eobeb oo st sas st s 1aatabesbbesbanronbebe st renenteneesseas 0899999
NOTEUL S, AT HALES 1vee e e e st b e s bt e s et s bssas bt s 1ot e en e e e et eetemeerevaneereenteneesseas 0599999
Total Affiliates...... eeeeeaeeeeteeeeenieesresestateiTIrEIeINeSeieteseateteatintnnrntantetiranrrrsee s i bnreaaareenraarets s batesenaare 1099999
Non-Affiliates
ULS. NON-ATTIHALES 1....c.ovvvveeeercriere v reseesescsessesisie st sists s e ssee e ssaessabensarasassessorsrssnsessssssntorsnneenns 1199999
NOD-ULS. NOMmATTIHALES 1. vveressisieniinreserssieins s ste s ssveces e e ersresrassrssssraeostsasesessesseesssssssnrasesves 1299999
TOtAl NON-ATTIHALES .......ceirrieres e ceirre s st s e se e et b sss et s e saesesat s seeeenesaestsassas et sresansese s tesessnsans 1399999
Tofal AcCident And HEalth, ..ot sac st st st s a e s ra s st sttt e s et st e s e e beeneensnte s 1499999
Total U.S. (Sum of 0199999, 0499999, 0899999 and 1199999) ......ovirteemreeeereemeeeeeeeoseeereseesrssssesessssesessesesesesssmeenees. 1599999
Total Non-U.S. (Sum of 0299999, 0599999, 0999999 and 1299999).......ccrirrermmiininenaiiesniisinesisissmssesesessseserens er 1699999
Total (Sum 0f 1599999 and 16999F9)........ccceeeerirrr v irreresescaisiisssrete et s tss st e sse e e sessesesassensasasasssasssaessssesessiosenesenns 1799999

Column Descriptions -

Column 1 - Company Code or ID Number

The U.S. Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) must be reported for each U.S. domiciled
insurer and U.S. branch of an alien insurer. For insurers domiciled in non-U.S. jurisdictions, report the

NAIC Form CR-S
OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 6 of 18



Column 3 -

Columnd -

Column 5 —

Column 6 -

Column 7 -

NAIC Form CR-8

entity’s national identification number as issued by its domestic jurisdiction. Reinsurance
intermediaries should not be listed, as Form CR-F is intended to identify only risk-bearing entities.

Effective Date

Report earliest effective date of confracts with recoverables reported applicable to individual assuming
insurers. :

Name of Company (Reinsurer)

Location (Domiciliary Jurisdiction) -

Report the two-character postal code abbreviation for the domiciliary jurisdiction. A comprehensive
listing of postal code abbreviations for foreign countries is attached to these instructions. For postal
code abbreviations of foreign countries not found in the appendix, use the code found at:

www.nationsonline.org/oneworld/countrycodes.htm

If a reinsurer has merged with another entity, report the domiciliary jurisdiction of the surviving entify.

Paid Losses

Report reinsured claim amounts paid by the reporting entity but not yet reimbursed by the reinsurer.

Unpaid Losses

Include the reinsured amounts for claims that are in course of settlement and will become recoverable
from reinsurers following payment.

OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)

Rule 690-144.607

Page 7 of 18



FORM CR-S — PART 3 — SECTION 1

REINSURANCE CEDED LIFE INSURANCE, ANNUITIES, DEPOSIT FUNDS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
WITHOUT LIFE OR DISABILITY CONTINGENCIES, AND RELATED BENEFITS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, (MOST RECENT YEAR-END)

Form CR-S Part 3 Section 1 must be reported by an assuming insurer upon initial application for status as a Certified
Reinsurer, and on an annual basis thereafter so long as the Certified Reinsurer maintains certification. Amounts are to be
reported in U.S. dollars with thousands omitted. All dates reported in Form CR-S must be in the format MM/DDYYYYY. For
example, the date December 13, 2011 should be reported as 12/13/2011. The Certified Reinsurer’s rating and collateral
requirement, as assigned by the certifying state, and the effective date of such rating, must be included on this form with
respect to each filing that is submitted subsequent to certification, '

Part 3 Section 1 provides information with respect to reinsurance ceded or retroceded by a Certified Reinsurer (or applicant)
to assuming insurers domiciled in the U.S. and abroad. Reporting entities are required to provide assuming insurer-specific
data on reinsurance ceded for a minimum of the top ten assuming insurers as measured by reinsurance recoverables,
Assuming insurer-specific data must be reported for additional assuming insurers (i.e., beyond the top ten) only to the extént
necessary to ensure that the assuming insurer-specific reporting represents at least 75% of all reinsurance recoverables due.
Part 3 Section 1 data applicable to all other assuming insurers may be reported on an aggregate basis. Reporting entities are
required to subtotal this information, including both individual and aggregate data, into the categories listed below, as
applicable. Include actual reinsurance ceded on group cases but exclude jointly underwritten group contracts.

Group of Category Line Number
General Account
Affiliates .
LS, ATTIALES 11vvvvareeesivisisieiieisiesirseesseses s e sassbe s e sesassassresreeresab e bessseseatsssassesasessontsssansensesnaneans eeereen 0199999
NON=U.8., ATFIHALES .oovverii e ettt e 0299999
Total AffIlATES .cceveeccrie e e e eh et E et bbb hea e bttt S et L et entenetensen e snenaans 0399999
Non-Affiliates
LS. INOMEATTIIALES 1ovieciiiiiciiitiieete et vrserecereraesrerrstrentsrsenreareessrsaeabesateseat s sheens et aatesesesennsse st sere e snnes 0499969
NON-U S, INOI- AT T ATES .ottt et ee s e s er e essereeer et et b s s o sbasabestesatesanesmesnesnnnsenmsenes 0599999
TOtA] NON-A T IALES ottt e e s e e r s sesr e s res bt s b et s bsseeebe st srenereneeneansas 0699999
TOtAl GEIEIAL ACCOUNT ...iuiieetreeteceieeeee e eeee e ceceeeterre s e e bestssesasressasssames sats sats smereense s e s seeenssaensaensaeessensssramssmes 0799999
Separate Accounts
Affiliates
S, ATTIALES ..ttt e et e st o sres sat s smasn e esstabbar e s st e naba s be st seestmtsennrenssarserons (899999
P e e R TN i i1 1 T T UV 0999999
TOIAL AT TS 11evvveeeesereseeeire it isr s sees e raessterraranassrearesshesbesseessessssessbossetasssnebeasasssssesatats st entanssaeereesons 1099999
Non-Affiliates
LS, NONEATTIHALES 1vve i eers s se e e et seas s e et sr e bs st et earsobas1et st oaaesteeanenenbesteseesaas 119999%
NON-ULS, NOM-ATTTAIES ...ve vt esaces e bttt st e b stem e s 1ot et e e st ereeeeemeeneemeasaesentes sas 1299999
TOtAl NONE AT T HAIES . cveiiveii e bbb es b e st s s et a bt e e st s eeee et e re st ereareeseenresesnessssesseas 1399999
Total SEPAIATE ACCOUNLS......ccicriiiiiniiere st st bbb bt s b e b e b s bt e b bs e emem st em et esesesssemsaneseoneas 1459999
Total U.S. (Sum of 0199999, 0499999, 0899999, 1190999 ) ..ot re e e srssessssersseesssatsrssasasnenesenssves 1599999
Total Non-U.S. (Sum of 0299999, 0599999, 0999999, 1299900)........cvviieeerrimiisiinessssesssserssissssessssssessessssesssses 1699999

Total (Sum of 1599999 and 1699999 )...........ccerercerenrr ittt srnsnns e 1799999

Column Descriptions

Column 1 - Company Code or [D Number

The U.S. Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) must be reported for each U.S. domiciled
insurer and U.S. branch of an alien insurer. For insurers domiciled in non-U.S. jurisdictions, report the

NAIC Form CR-S
OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)
Rule 690-144.007 Page 8 of 18



Column 3 -

Colomn 4 -

Column 3 -

Column 6 -

NAIC Form CR-S

entity’s national identification number as issued by its domestic jurisdiction. Reinsurance
intermediaries should not be listed, as Form CR-F is intended to identify only risk-bearing entities.

Effective Date

Report earliest effective date of contracts with recoverables reported applicable to individual assuming
insurers.

Name of Company (Reinsurer)
Location (Domiciliary Jurisdiction)
Report the two-character postal code abbreviation for the domiciliary jurisdiction. A comprehensive

listing of postal code abbreviations for foreign countries is available in the appendix of these

instructions. For postal code abbreviations of foreign countries not found in the appendix, use the code
found at:

www.nationsonline.org/oneworld/countrycodes.htm

If a reinsurer has merged with another entity, report the domiciliary jurisdiction of the surviving entity.
Type of Reinsurance Ceded

Use the following abbreviations to identify the plan and type of reinsurance. For example, group
coinsurance with funds withheld should be identified as COFW/G. (If there is more than one type of
reinsurance in the same reinsurance company, show each type on a separate line.) NOTE: The type
should be entered in all capital letters, and ALL reinsurance types must be followed by /G (for Group)
or /I (for Individual).

Abbreviations:
I Individual All Reinsurance Types should be
G Group followed by / or /G.
REINSURANCE TYPES
CO Coinsurance ACO Annuity coinsurance
COFW Coinsurance with funds ACOFW Annuity coinsurance with
withheld funds withheld
MCO Modified coinsurance AMCO Annuity modified
: coinsurance
MCOFW  Modified coinsurance AMCOFW  Annuity modified
with funds withheld coinsurance with funds
withheld
COMB Combination ACOMB Annuity combination
coinsurance/modified coinsurance/modified
coinsurance : coinsurance
COMBW  Combination ACOMBW  Annuity combination
coinsurance/modified coinsurance/modified
coinsurance with funds coinsurance with funds
withheld withheld
YRT Yearly renewable term GMDB Guaranteed minimum
death benefit
CAT Catastrophe GMDBFW  Guaranteed minimum
death benefit funds
withheld
OTH Other reinsurance ADB Accidental death benefit
: e 1 DIS e Disability benefits
NOTE: The insurance type should be entered in all capital letters.

OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)

Rule 690-144.007

Page 9 of 18



Column 7 —

Column 8 -
Column 9 —

Column 10 —

Columns
11 & 12 -

Column 13 —

Column 14 -

NAIC Form CR-S

Amount in Force at End of Year
Report the ceded amount of the basic life insurance policy only

For catastrophe-reinsurance (CAT), disability reinsurance (DIS), accidental death benefit reinsurance
{ADB) and annuity reinsurance (ACO and AMCO), leave this column blank.

Reserve Credit Taken Current Year
Reserve Credit Taken Prior Year

Premiums
Amounts included in this column should represent reinsurance ceded premiums on an incurred basis,

For deposit funds and other liabilities without life or disability contingencies, leave this colunm blank.

Outstanding Surplus Relief
Outstanding surplus relief means the amount of surplus not yet reporied as income.

Report the amount of initial commissions and expense allowance not yet recovered by the reinsurer for
the following types of treaties (individual or group): CO, ACO, MCO, AMCO, COFW, ACOFW,
MCOFW, AMCOFW, COMB, ACOMB, ACOMBW AND COMBW. This column does not apply to
CAT, DIS, ADB, YRT or other nen-proportional reinsurance treaties.

Include the outstanding surplus resulting from reinsurance of separate accounts business,

Modified Coinsurance Reserve

Report the amount of reserves held under modified comsurance contracts. Include separate accounts
modified coinsurance reserves.

Funds Withheld Under Coinsurance

Report the amount of funds withheld on coinsurance contracts.

OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)

Rule 690-144.007

Page 10 of 18



FORM CR-S — PART 3 — SECTION 2

REINSURANCE CEDED ACCIDENT AND HEALTH INSURANCE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, (MOST RECENT YEAR-END)

Form CR-S Part 3 Section 1 must be reported by an assuming insurer upon initial application for status as a Certified
Reinsurer, and on an annual basis thereafter so long as the Certified Reinsurer maintains certification. Amounts are to be
reported in U.S. dollars with thousands omitted. All dates reported in Form CR-S must be in the format MM/DD/YYYY. For
example, the date December 13, 2011 should be reported as 12/13/2011. The Certified Reinsurer’s rating and collateral
requirement, as assigned by the certifying state, and the effective date of such rating, must be included on this form with
respect to each filing that is submitted subsequent to certification.

Part 3 Section 1 provides information with respect to reinsurance ceded or retroceded by a Certified Reinsurer (or applicant)
to assuming insurers domiciled in the U.S. and abroad. Reporting entities are required to provide assuming insurer-specific
data on reinsurance ceded for a minimum of the top ten assuming insurers as measured by reinsurance recoverables.
Assuming insurer-specific data must be reported for additional assuming insurers (i.e., beyond the top ten) only to the extent
necessary to ensure that the assuming insurer-specific reporting represents at least 75% of all reinsurance recoverables due.
Part 3 Section 1 data applicable to all other assuming insurers may be reported on an aggregate basis. Reporting entities are
required to subtotal this information, including both individual and aggregate data, into the categories listed below, as
applicable. Include actual reinsurance ceded on group cases but exclude jointly underwritten group contracts.

Group or Category Line Number
- General Account
Affiliates
LS. ATTIHALES ..o e e v et e e e se e er st e sat et e st eetsaan e et e seteratsentensesasatesatasesnnenenesrmnrs sasaas 0199999
NONEULS. ASTILALES ..ccvvviv it cresrrn s rerr it esrt et st e s tasasesas et s sas st ssasben s bnssbassbecabeenbesbesnt oo tresansans 0299999
TOTAL ATTILIAIES ........orerereverse i s e eessesss e s e re e et sb et se e s s st s s st et ebenteresaeesaanssaesabessasssasaeseentrasasen srinssneas 0399999
Non-Affiliates
LS, NOMEATTIHALES 11ivveevee et e cr s e st e et s s s b st s be s e s emaeseeseeereene s e emereenes e 0499999
INON=UL S, IO AT LS ..ve stk sttt tietee s e revesseaeenonees s assnnerneesareeasssnnses (599999
T Ot NN AT T TS ... oee e et ettt et e et e e e e e e e e eeesea st e e srnseensesenneesrtensanesssnmessas 0699999
Total General ACCOUNL......cooeeivvivreiccieec e ettt tbeteueeteeeeeeeereteiesieerteissesresesiarerraastrereeeaantiatee et eranerran (799999
Separate Accounts ‘
Affiliates . .
LS, ATTIAES 1ovvvvisiiieir it iiee e st e s s s e s e e s eee s e sn s b e s s e esssassbese st s saatabem st are et e smeareransesemeseesssnas 0899999
Non-U.S. Affiliates ........coovvveiiieeeeeeeeann, eeretrirerenhateetierEtateeatett e et iaeteeteae s ranreaatetsaanereeaeeraannes 0999999
TOtA] ATTILALES .. veeiicrieciieceeeeeersreseceree e s sr e e e e rarE st e s eabesm e e e eatereaesessantsateresannraserasssan 1099999
Non-Affiliates
LS, NOMEATTIIALES ..o e e esrass e e e eree sesaat s e s st s besaeab e et sranensssaesbessssesnsseessenassn 1199999
Non-U.S. Non-Affiliates...........ccccovvvvrivernnverarienes et e st e ... 1299999
TOtAl NOMATTIAIES ...oeeeceee e e s et sae st st e b s eae b e saeer e s eaaeseenbeseteresatsbesassassraae an 1399999
Total Separate ACCOUMIS. ...t a et bbb r e 1499999
Total U.S, (Sum of 0199999, 0499599, 0899999, 1 199999).......cceirrereceiererrese e smsesessetansesesas st seeeeeeastenesee st e s ssnns 1599999
Total Non-U.S. (Sum of 0299999, 0599999, 0999999, 129999)....ccmmiiiiieectececre e 1699999
Total (Sum of 1599999 and LEFTTDD).......ccieeerrrireeireire i seeseesesseseiesrasseeesemeasseessasseresesasatseorssssnssrsnsssstssasesenssnesesnsennans 1799999

Column Descriptions

Column 1 - Company Code or 1D Number

The U.S. Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) must be reported for each U.S. domiciled
insurer and U.S. branch of an alien insurer. For insurers domiciled in non-U.S. jurisdictions, report the
entity’s national identification number as issued by its domestic . jurisdiction. Reinsurance
intermediaries should not be listed, as Form CR-F is intended to identify only risk-bearing entities.

NAIC Form CR-S

OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)

Rule 690-144.007 Page 11 of 18



Column 3 -

Column 4 -

. Column 5 -

Column 6 —

Column 7 -

Column 8 -

NAIC Form CR-S

Effective Date

Report earliest effective date of contracts with recoverables reported applicable to individual assuming
insurers,

Name of Company (Reinsurer)

Location (Domiciliary Jurisdiction)

Report the two-character postal code abbreviation for the domiciliary jurisdiction. A comprehensive
listing of postal code abbreviations for foreign countries is available in the appendix of these

instructions. For postal code abbreviations of foreign countries not found in the appendix, use the code
found at;

www.nationsonline.org/oneworld/countrycodes.htm
If a reinsurer has merged with another entity, report the domiciliary jurisdiction of the surviving entity.
Type
Use the following abbreviations to identify the plan and type of reinsurance. For example, group
coinsurance with funds withheld should be identified as COFW/G. (If there is more than one type of
reinsurance in the same reinsurance company, show each type on a separate line.) NOTE: The type

should be entered in all capital letters, and ALL reinsurance types must be followed by /G (for Group)
or /1 (for Individual).

Abbreviations:
| Individual . All Reinsurance Types should be
G Group followed by /I or /G.
REINSURANCE TYPES

Co Coinsurance : COFW Coinsurance with funds
' withheld

MCO Modified coinsurance MCOFW  Modified coinsurance

with funds withheld

COMB Combination ' COMBW  Combination
coinsurance/modified coinsurance/modified
coinsurance coinsurance with funds
: _ withheld

YRT Yearly renewable term CAT Catastroplie

LTC Long-Term Care OTH Other reinsurance

NOTE: The insurance type should be entered in all capital letters.

Premiums
Amotits included in this column should represent reinsurance ceded premiums on an incurred basis.

Unearned Premiums (Estimated)

OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)

Rule 690-144.007

Page 12 of 18



Column 9 —

Columns
. 10 and 11 —

Column 12 -

Column 13 —

NAIC Form CR-$

Amounts represent, by company, the ceded part of the unearned premium.

Reserve Credit Taken Other Than For Unearned Premiums

Outstanding Surplus Relief
Outstanding surplus relief means the amount of surplus not yet reported as income.

Report the amount of initial commissions and expense allowance not yet recovered by the reinsurer for
the following types of freaties (individual or group): CO, MCO, COFW, MCOFW, COMB or
COMBW. This column does not apply to YRT or other nonproportional reinsurance treaties.

Modified Coinsurance Reserve

Report the amount of reserves held under modified coinsurance contracts.

Funds Withheld Under Coinsurance

Report the amount of funds withheld on coinsurance contracts.

OIR-C1-2118 (New XX/XX)

Rule 690-144.007

Page 13 of 18



8130 p] ofeg ' L00°PFI-069 Iy

- (XX/XX MaN) SIIZ-TO¥IO
S-4D wiog DIVN
ST,
WEINSUTO) BATASY S05S0T STNITDI ] BALBOY Teazx 30 puy pawmssy uoTENT PaInSHY ayeq i Jaqumpy
Ipu} AIWRINSUIOT) predar) . Je 3nae g oy AIUEINSTTIY P AR ar
PRTDLA PAGIPORY PUe preg Jo Jumomy joodiy, Auren 0 3p0)
spumJ wo apqeseg : Amedmon)
SOTRITSITN]
3t 11 01 6 8 L 9 g ¥ g g T

IB9} JUSIINy) ‘1 IoquIads(] .q.o se Awedwo)) PamsuIay ho_ PeIsSTT syouag pere[e)] PUB ‘seruaduriuo)) AMIqes( 0 oy ﬁ._oﬁH M
SONIT[IETT I9Y1() PUE Spun,j 3150da(] ‘SSHMUUY ‘9dURINSU] SJIT POWNSSY S0UBMSULSY

T NOILDHES - T LUVd - S dD oy




81 30 G1 o3ed  LO0'PFT-069 SNy

(XX/XX #3N) 8I1T-1D-¥10
SO uog DIVN
STEI0L
SoTeansS o) PATISEY SES0] PTEGU[) SWNROeL SWMTmAL] SRR © pounssy noTIpsIn poxusuToyg neq TOQUIAN
TOpUL) BOWRANSTITCD) pue preg PeTTRIT ) panIEIuf] [0URMSTTEY AreTroTmoq o EYSCECin a
PIETTHM PIPCI uo s[qedeg 03 Jo FWEN 20 Apoy
spung FOTEIMSTTY] Uey,], G0 ad4y, Ameduo)
’ fyigery
QARSI
1) 1T (033 6 8 L . ) g ¥ € 4 1

TeaX JUBLM) ‘g IaquIada(] Jo St Ausdimo)) painsuIsy £q paIst] 20URINSU] YT PUR JU2Pay POWMSSY S0UBINSUISY
Z NOILDHS - T LUVd — S-4) wiog _




8130 91 93eq _ LOO'PFI-069 Y
{XX/XX 4aN) 811Z-1D-910
S-4D wIod JIVN

THEeH PUE JRepLoY pue Amuuy 3 —EERL

. . ETE Y
$9550] SB550°] uonEs0T Ameduoy sfeq ; . ar
predug) preq 3o ATIITH ’ a0 3P0
: aueN Auedwor)
L 9 < ¥ £ [ T

Fes] JUIIny ‘I I9qmavd(] Jo st Auedmoy) mﬁuﬁmﬂ,om £q pejsT sesso] preduy) pug pred UO S[QEISA008Y S0UBINSULSY
¢ LYVd — 59D w10y




8130 LT 938 - LOOPPT-069 3y
(XX/XX MaND) STIZ-1D-9I0O
S-4O W0 DIVN
STEI0%,
FOUBIMSUIO]) 2ATASAY TBDE Xeax STNTIA] T2 Teay Teax Jo pud papen Tonex] Amedwmop) NBQg TaquInN
Topup somRIMSIOg wowg 1T Jomg 0FITOY 1€ 22104 20TRINSTTOY 30 AT ar
FRUGIM PAGION 4 11 6 8 ot JomeTry JoodAL swmeN P
spmng P WL, Tedmon
snpdmg JupTersmo TIPALY BAXSSHY
¥1 1 01 L 4 ) ¥ £ ] Z T

Tesy JUaIm)) ‘I€ I8queds(] Jo s fuedmo)) Sunmsursy £q pejst] sygausyg poje[ey PUe ‘SAUIZULITO)) Angesig 10 sfr] wﬁo%ﬂ M
SOTI[IqBY ISJ() PUE Spun,g J1soda(T ‘Salymuuy ‘@ouemMsU] SfI] PoPa]) s0UBInSULSY
T NOLLOYS — & LYVd - S-4D WIoq




8130 81 o3ed

- LOOPYPI-069 Y

- (XX/XX #3u) §TIT-1D-HIO

. $7HD W10 DIVN

STHOL
TRINSULOT) aazasay Teax Xeax ST (paewasy) STINTHISL] adA], WOTBI ] Auedwo) are ISR
IBpTN) JOUBINSUIO Ioug Iy pourearw) SR ] o aaTpagH a1
PO ' PIGTPO 10F TETI PIUIBIT[Y meN : 0 3p0D)
spung 11 01 I3 TOHEL Auedmol)
FTPY snIEmE BUpUEISing EPSIT 2ATISY
el gl 8 8 L S ¥ £ 1

Feo ) JUsLIM)) ‘TE Iequrads(] Jo se Auedwo)) Surmsurey £q poIsTy ,ooﬁ.m._.dmﬂ I[es] Ple JUSpPIOY pepa)) sousInsuley

2 NOLLDHS — € 1LUVd - S-dD W10




690-144.005,.007
Rulemaking Authority

624.308 Rules.—

(1) The department and the commission may each adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1)
and 120.54 to implement provisions of law conferring duties upon the department or the
commission, respectively.

(2) In addition to any other penalty provided, willful violation of any such rule shall subject
the violator to such suspension or revaocation of certificate of authority or license as may be
applicable under this code as for violation of the provision as to which such rule relates.
'624.610 Reinsurance.—

(1} The purpose of this section is to protect the interests of msureds, claimants, ceding
insurers, assuming insurers, and the public. It is the intent of the Legislature to ensure
adequate regulation of insurers and reinsurers and adequate protection for those to whom
they owe obligations. In furtherance of that state interest, the Legislature reguires that.
upon the insolvency of a non-United States insurer or reinsurer which provides security to
fund its United States obligations in accordance with this section, such security shall be
maintained.in the United States and claims shall be filed with and valued by the state
insurance regulator with regulatory oversight, and the assets shall be distributed in
accordance with the insurance laws of the state in which the trust is domiciled that are
applicable to the liquidation of domestic United States insurance companies. The Legislature
declares that the matters contained in this section are fundamental to the business of
insurance in accordance with 15 U.S.C. ss. 1011-1012.

(2) Credit for reinsurance must be allowed a ceding insurer as either an asset or a
deduction from liability on account of reinsurance ceded only when the reinsurer meets the
requirements of paragraph (3)(a), paragraph (3)(b), or paragraph (3)}{c). Credit must be
allowed under paragraph (3)(a) or paragraph {3)(b) only for cessions of those kinds or lines
of business that the assuming insurer is licensed, authorized, or otherwise permitted to
write or assume in its state of domicile or, in the case of a United States branch of an alien
assuming insurer, in the state through which it is entered and licensed or authorized to
transact insurance or reinsurance.

(3)(a) Credit must be aliowed when the reinsurance is ceded to an assuming insurer that is
authorized to transact insurance or reinsurance in this state.

(b)1. Credit must be allowed when the reinsurance is ceded to an assuming insurer that is
accredited as a reinsurer in this state. An accredited reinsurer is one that:

a. Files with the office evidence of ils submission to this state’s jurisdiction;

b. Submits to this state’s authority to examine its books and records;

¢. Is licensed or authorized to transact insurance or reinsurance in at least one state or, in
the case of a United States branch of an alien assuming insurer, is entered through,
licensed, or authorized to transact insurance or reinsurance in at least one state;

d. Files annually with the office a copy of its annual statement filed with the insurance
department of its state of domicile any quarterly statements if required by its state of
domicile or such quarterly statements if specifically requested by the office, and a copy of
its most recent audited financiai statement; and

(I} Maintains a surplus as regards policyholders in an amount not less than $20 million and
whose accreditation has not been denied by the office within 90 days after its submission;
or

(II} Maintains a surplus as regards policyholders in an amount not less than $20 million
and whose accreditation has been approved by the office,

2. The office may deny or revoke an assuming insurer's accreditation if the assuming
insurer does not submit the required documentation pursuant to subparagraph 1., if the
assuming insurer fails to meet all of the standards required of an accredited reinsurer, or if
the assuming insurer’s accreditation would be hazardous to the policyholders of this state.
In determining whether to deny or revoke accreditation, the office may consider the
qualifications of the assuming insurer with respect to aII the following subjects:

a. Its financial stability;



690-144.005,.007
Rulemaking Authority

b. The lawfulness and quality of its investments;

c. The competency, character, and integrity of its management;

d. The competency, character, and integrity of persons who own or have a controliing
interest in the assuming insurer; and

e. Whether claims under its contracts are promptly and fairly adjusted and are promptly
and fairly paid in accordance with the law and the terms of the contracts.

3. Credit must not be allowed a ceding insurer if the assuming insurer’s accreditation has
been revoked by the office after notice and the opportunity for a hearing.

4. The actual costs and expenses incurred by the office to review a reinsurer’s request for
accreditation and subsequent reviews must be charged to and collected from the requesting
reinsurer. If the reinsurer fails to pay the actual costs and expenses promptly when due, the
office may refuse to accredit the reinsurer or may revoke the reinsurer’s accreditation.
(c)1. Credit must be allowed when the reinsurance is ceded to an assuming insurer that
maintains a trust fund in a qualified United States financial institution, as defined in
paragraph (5)(b), for the payment of the valid claims of its United States ceding insurers
and their assigns and successors in interest. To enable the office to determine the
sufficiency of the trust fund, the assuming lnsurer shall report annually to the office
information substantially the same as that required to be reported on the NAIC Annual
Statement form by authorized insurers. The assuming insurer shall submit to examination of
its books and records by the office and bear the expense of examination.

2.a. Credit for reinsurance must not be granted under this subsection unless the form of
the trust and any amendments to the trust have been approved by:

(I) The insurance regulator of the state in which the trust is domiciled; or

(1II) The insurance regulator of another state who, pursuant to the terms of the trust
instrument, has accepted principal regulatory oversight of the trust.

b. The form of the trust and any trust amendments must be filed with the insurance
regulator of every state in which the ceding insurer beneficiaries of the trust are domiciled.
The trust instrument must provide that contested claims are valid and enforceable upon the
final order of any court of competent jurisdiction in the United States. The trust must vest
legal title to its assets in its trustees for the benefit of the assuming insurer’s United States
ceding insurers and their assigns and successors in interest. The trust and the assuming
insurer are subject to examination as determined by the insurance reguiator.

c. The trust remains in effect for as long as the assuming insurer has outstanding
obligations due under the reinsurance agreements subject to the trust. No later than
February 28 of each year, the trustee of the trust shall report to the insurance regulator in
writing the balance of the trust and list the trust’s investments at the preceding year end,
and shall certify that the trust will not expire prior to the following December 31.

3. The following requirements apply to the following categories of assuming insurer:

a. The trust fund for a single assuming insurer consists of funds in trust in an amount not
less than the assuming insurer’s liabilities attributable to reinsurance ceded by United States
ceding insurers, and, in addition, the assuming insurer shall maintain a trusteed surplus of
not {ess than $20 million. Not lass than 50 percent of the funds in the trust covering the
assuming insurer’s liabilities attributable to reinsurance ceded by United States ceding
insurers and trusteed surplus shall consist of assets of a quality substantially similar to that
required in part II of chapter 625. Clean, irrevocable, unconditional, and evergreen letters
of credit, issued or confirmed by a qualified United States financial institution, as defined in
paragraph (5)(a), effective no later than December 31 of the year for which the filing is
made and in the possession of the trust on or before the filing date of its annual statement,
may be used to fund the remainder of the trust and trusteed surplus.

b.(I) In the case of a group including incorporated and individual unincorporated
underwriters:

(A} .For reinsurance ceded under reinsurance agreements with an inception, amendment,
or renewal date on or after August 1, 1995, the trust consists of a trusteed account in an



690-144.005,.007
Rulemaking Authority

amount not less than the group’s several liabilities attributable to business ceded by United
States domiciled ceding insurers to any member of the group;

(B) For reinsurance ceded under reinsurance agreements with an inception date on or
before July 31, 1995, and not amended or renewed after that date, notwithstanding the
other provisions of this section, the trust consists of a trusteed account in an amount not
less than the group’s several insurance and reinsurance liabilities attributable to business
written in the United States; and

(C)} In addition to these trusts, the group shall maintain in trust a trusteed surplus of which
$100 million must be held jointly for the benefit of the United States domiciled ceding
insurers of any member of the group for all years of account.

(11} The incorporated members of the group must not be engaged in any business other
than underwriting of a member of the group, and are subject to the same level of regulation
and solvency control by the group’s domiciliary regulator as the unincorporated members.
(IIT) Within 90 days after its financial statements are due to be filed with the group’s
domiciliary regulator, the group shall provide to the insurance regulator an annual
certification by the group’s domiciliary regulator of the solvency of each underwriter
member or, if a certification is unavailable, financial statements, prepared by independent
public accountants, of each underwriter member of the group.

(d) Credit must be allowed when the reinsurance is ceded to an assuming insurer not
meeting the requirements of paragraph (a), paragraph (b), or paragraph (c}, but only as to
the insurance of risks located in jurisdictions in which the reinsurance is required to be
purchased by a particular entity by applicable law or regulation of that jurisdiction.

(e) If the reinsurance is ceded to an assuming insurer not meeting the requirements of
paragraph (a), paragraph (b}, paragraph (c), or paragraph (d), the commissioner may allow
credit, but only if the assuming insurer holds surpius in excess of $250 million and has a
secure financial strength rating from at least two statistical rating organizations deemed
acceptable by the commissioner as having experience and expertise in rating insurers doing
business in Florida, including, but not limited to, Standard & Poor's, Moody's Investors
Service, Fitch Ratings, A.M. Best Company, and Demotech. In determining whether credit
should be allowed, the commissioner shall consider the following: :
1. The domiciliary regulatory jurisdiction of the assuming insurer.

2. The structure and authority of the domiciliary regulator with regard to solvency
reguiation requirements and the financial surveillance of the reinsurer.

3. The substance of financial and operating standards for reinsurers in the domiciliary
jurisdiction.

4. The form and substance of financial reports required to be filed by the reinsurers in the
domiciliary jurisdiction or other public financial statements filed in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

5. The domiciliary regulator’s willingness to cooperate with United States regulators in
general and the office in particular.

6. The history of performance by reinsurers in the domiciliary jurisdiction.

7. Any documented evidence of substantial problems with the enforcement of valid United
States judgments in the domiciliary jurisdiction.

8. Any other matters deemed relevant by the commissioner. The commissioner shall give
appropriate consideration to insurer group ratings that may have been issued. The
commissioner may, in lieu of granting full credit under this subsection, reduce the amount
required to be held in trust under paragraph {c).

(fy If the assuming insurer is not authorized or accredited to transact insurance or
reinsurance in this state pursuant to paragraph (a) or paragraph (b), the credit permitted
by paragraph (c) or paragraph (d) must not be allowed unless the assuming insurer agrees
in the reinsurance agreements:

1.a.  Thatin the event of the failure of the assuming insurer to perform its obligations
under the terms of the reinsurance agreement, the assuming insurer, at the request of the



690-144.005,.007
Rulemaking Authority

ceding insurer, shall submit to the jurisdiction of any court of competent jurisdiction in any
state of the United States, will comply with all requirements necessary to give the court
jurisdiction, and wili abide by the final decision of the court or of any appellate court in the
event of an appeal; and

b. To designate the Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to s. 48.151, or a designated attorney
as its true and lawful attorney upon whom may be served any lawful process in any action,
suit, or proceeding instituted by or on behalf of the ceding company.

2. This paragraph is not intended to conflict with or override the obligation of the parties to
a reinsurance agreement to arbitrate their disputes, if this obligation is created in the
agreement.

(g} If the assuming insurer does not meet the requirements of paragraph (a) or paragraph
{b), the credit permitted by paragraph (c) or paragraph (d)} is not allowed unless the
assuming insurer agrees in the trust agreements, in substance, to the following conditions:
1. Notwithstanding any other provisions in the trust instrument, if the trust fund is
inadequate because it contains an amount less than the amount required by paragraph (c),
or if the grantor of the trust has been declared insolvent or placed into receivership,
rehabilitation, liquidation, or similar proceedings under the laws of its state or country of
domicile, the trustee shall comply with an order of the insurance regulator with regulatory
oversight over the trust or with an order of a United States court of competent jurisdiction
directing the trustee to transfer to the insurance requlator with regulatory oversight all of
the assets of the trust fund.

2. The assets must be distributed by and claims must be filed with and valued by the
insurance regulator with regulatory oversight in accordance with the laws of the state in
which the trust is domiciled which are applicable to the liquidation of domestic insurance
companies.

3. If the insurance regulator with regulatory oversight determines that the assets of the
trust fund or any part thereof are not necessary to satisfy the claims of the United States
ceding tnsurers of the grantor of the trust, the assets or part thereof must be returned by
the insurance regulator with regulatory oversight to the trustee for distribution in
accordance with the trust agreement.

4, The grantor shall waive any right otherwise available to it under United States law which
is inconsistent with this provision.

(4) An asset allowed or a deduction from liability taken for the reinsurance ceded by an
insurer to an assuming insurer not meeting the requirements of subsections (2) and (3) is
aliowed in an amount not exceeding the liabilities carried by the ceding insurer. The
deduction must be in the amount of funds held by or on behalf of the ceding insurer,
including funds held in trust for the ceding insurer, under a reinsurance contract with the
assuming insurer as security for the payment of obligations thereunder, if the security is
held in the United States subject to withdrawal solely by, and under the exclusive control of,
the ceding insurer, or, in the case of a trust, held in a qualified United States financial
institution, as defined in paragraph (5)(b). This security may be in the forrn of:

(a) Cash in United States dollars;

(b) Securities listed by the Securities Valuation Office of the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners and qualifying as admitted assets pursuant to part II of chapter
625;

(c) Clean, irrevocable, unconditional letters of credit, issued or confirmed by a qualified
United States financial institution, as defined in paragraph (5)(a), effective no later than
December 31 of the year for which the filing is made, and in the possession of, or in trust
for, the ceding company on or before the filing date of its annual statement; or

(d) Any other form of security acceptable to the office. '

(5)(a) For purposes of paragraph (4)(c) regarding letters of credlt a “qualified United
States financial institution” means an institution that:



690-144.005,.007
Rulemaking Authority

1. Is organized or, in the case of a United States office of a foreign banking organization, is
licensed under the laws of the United States or any state thereof;

2. Is regulated, supervised, and examined by United States or state authorities having
regulatory authority over banks and trust companies; and

3. Has been determined by either the office or the Securities Valuation Office of the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners to meet such standards of financial
condition and standing as are considered necessary and appropriate to regulate the quality
of financial institutions whose letters of credit will be acceptable to the office.

(b) For purposes of those provisions of this law which specify institutions that are eligible
to act as a fiduciary of a trust, a “qualified United States financial institution” means an
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System or that has been determined by
the office to meet the following criteria: '

1. Is organized or, in the case of a United States branch or agency office of a foreign
banking organization, s licensed under the laws of the United States or any state thereof
and has been granted authority to operate with fiduciary powers; and

2. Is regulated, supervised, and examined by federal or state authorities having regulatory
authority over banks and trust companies.

(6) For the purposes of this section oniy, the term “ceding insurer” includes any health
maintenance organization operating under a certificate of authority issued under part I of
chapter 641.

(7) After notice and an opportunity for a hearing, the office may disallow any credit that it
finds would be contrary to the proper-interests of the policyholders or stockholders of a
ceding domestic insurer,

(8) Credit must be allowed to any ceding insurer for reinsurance otherwise complying with
. this section only when the reinsurance is payable by the assuming insurer on the basis of
the liability of the ceding insurer under the contract or contracts reinsured without
diminution because of the insolvency of the ceding insurer. Such credit must be allowed to
the ceding insurer for reinsurance otherwise complying with this section only when the
reinsurance agreement provides that payments by the assuming insurer will be made
directly to the ceding insurer or its receiver, except when:

(a)- The reinsurance contract specifically provides payment to the named insured, assignee,
or named beneficiary of the policy issued by the ceding insurer in the event of the
insolvency of the ceding insurer; or

(b) The assuming insurer, with the consent of the named insured, has assumed the policy
obligations of the ceding insurer as direct obligations of the assuming insurer in substitution
for the obligations of the ceding insurer to the named insured.

(9). No person, other than the ceding insurer, has any rights against the reinsurer which
are not specifically set forth in the contract of reinsurance or in a specific written, signed
agreement between the reinsurer and the person.

(10) An authorized insurer may not knowingly accept as assuming reinsurer any risk
covering subject of insurance which is resident, located, or to be performed in this state and
which is written directly by any insurer not then authorized to transact such insurance in
this state, other than as to surplus lines insurance lawfully written under part VIII of chapter
626.

(11)(a) Any domestic or commercially domiciled insurer ceding directly written risks of loss
under this section shall, within 30 days after receipt of a cover note or similar confirmation
of coverage, or, without exception, no later than 6 months after the effective date of the
reinsurance treaty, file with the office one copy of a summary statement containing the
following information about each treaty:

1. The contract period;

2. The nature of the reinsured’s business;

3. An indication as to whether the treaty is proportional, nonproportional, coinsurance,
modified coinsurance, or indemnity, as applicable;



690-144.005,.007
Rulemaking Authority

The ceding company's loss retention per risk;

The reinsured limits;

Any special contract restrictions;

A schedule of reinsurers assuming the risks of loss;

An indication as to whether payments to the assuming insurer are based on written
premiums or earned premiums;

9. Identification of any intermediary or broker used in obtaining the reinsurance and the
commission pald to such intermediary or broker if known; and

10. Ceding commissions and allowances.

(b} The summary statement must be signed and attested to by either the chief executive
officer or the chief financial officer of the reporting insurer. In addition to the summary
statement, the office may require the filing of any supporting information relating to the
ceding of such risks as it deems necessary. If the summary statement prepared by the
ceding insurer discloses that the net effect of a reinsurance treaty or treaties (or series of
treaties with one or more affiliated reinsurers entered into for the purpose of aveiding the
following threshold amount) at any time results in an increase of more than 25 percent to
the insurer's surplus as to policyholders, then the insurer shall certify in writing to the office
that the relevant reinsurance treaty or treaties comply with the accounting requirements
contained in any rule adopted by the commission under subsection (14). If such certificate
is filed after the summary statement of such reinsurance treaty or treaties, the insurer shall
refile the summary statement with the certificate. In any event, the cettificate must state
that a copy of the certificate was sent to the reinsurer under the reinsurance treaty,

{¢). This subsection applies to cessions of directly written risk or loss. This subsection does
not apply to contracts of facultative reinsurance or to any ceding insurer that has a surplus
as to policyholders which exceeds $100 million as of the immediately preceding December
31. A ceding insurer otherwise subject to this section which had less than $500,000 in direct
premiums written in this state during the preceding calendar year and no more than
$250,000 in direct premiums written in this state during the preceding calendar quarter,
and which had fewer than 1,000 policyholders at the end of the preceding calendar year, is
exempt from this subsection.

(d) An authorized insurer not otherwise exempt from the provisions of this subsection shall
provide the information required by this subsection with underlying and supporting
documentation upon written request of the office.

{e) The office may, upon a showing of good cause, waive the requirements of this
subsection. _

(12} If the office finds that a reinsurance agreement creates a substantial risk of
insolvency to either insurer entering into the reinsurance agreement, the office may by
order require a cancellation of the reinsurance agreement.

(13) No credit shall be allowed for reinsurance with regard to which the reinsurance
agreement does not create a meaningful transfer of risk of loss to the reinsurer.

(14) The commission may adopt rules implementing the provisions of this section. Rules
are authorized to protect the interests of insureds, claimants, ceding insurers, assuming
insurers, and the public, These rules shall be in substantial compliance with:

{a) The National Association of Insurance Commissioners model regulations relating to
credit for reinsurance;

{b) The National Association of Insurance Commissioners Accounting Practices and
Procedures Manual as of March 2002 and subsequent amendments thereto if the
methodology remains substantially consistent; and

{c) The National Association of Insurance Commlssuoners model regulatlon for Credit for
Reinsurance and Life and Health Reinsurance Agreements.

PNk

The commission may further adopt rules to provide for transition from existing requirements for the
approval of reinsurers to the accreditation of reinsurers pursuant to this section.



690-144.005,.007
Rulemaking Authority

(15) Any reinsurer approved pursuant to s. 624.610(3)(a)2., as such provision existed
prior to July 1, 2000, which fails to obtain accreditation pursuant to this section prior to
December 30, 2003, shall have its approval terminated by operation of law on that date,
(16) This act shall apply to all cessions on or after January 1, 2001, under reinsurance
agreements that have an inception, anniversary, or renewal date on or after January 1,
2001.

624.307 General powers; duties.—

(1) The department and office shall enforce the provisions of this code and shall execute
the duties impased upon them by this code, within the respective jurisdiction of each, as
provided by law.






MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 24, 2014

-~ TO:- - Kevin-M. McCarty; Commnssmner Ofﬁce oflnsurance Regulatlon
THROUGH: Belinda Miller, General Counsel
FROM:  Dennis Threadgil

Stephen Fredrickso

SUBJECT: Cabinet Agenda for April 22, 2014
Request for Approval to Publish Amendments to
Rule 690-148.001
Funding of Preneed Contracts
Assignment # 128912-12

~ The Office of Insurance Regulation requests that this proposed rule amendment be presented to
the Cabinet aides on or before April 16, 2014 and to the Financial Services Commission on
April 22, 2014, with a request to approve for publication the proposed rules.

The rule,” Funding of Preneed Contracts With Life Insurance or Annuities, contains a disparity
in the maximum face amount for pre-need policies between it and Section 626.785, F.S. The
rule caps the maximum face amount at $7,500 and the statute caps the maximum face amount

at $12,500. Therefore, the Office proposes amendmg Rule 690-148.001 to cross reference the
statutory limit on the maximum face amount.

Sections 624.308(1), 624.307(1), 626.785, 626. 9541(1)(a) (t), 627.410, F.S. , provide rulemakmg.
authority and laws implemented for this rule

Stephen Fredrickson is the attorney handling this rule. Attached are: 1) the proposed rule(s), 2)

any incorporated materials, such as forms; and 3) copies of the rulemaking statutory authority
and aw implemented.

Approved for signature: ‘
/@. ‘7’;’ L ]

Approved for submission to Financial Services
Commission:

i J » 7 ..
Office of Insurance Regulatton '



.690-148.001 Funding of Prenced Contracts With Life Insurance or Annuities,
(1) through {(4) no change.
(5) Limitation of Coverage.
(a) Life insurance or nonvariable type annuity contracts may be sold to cover the cost of services and merchandise specified in a
preneed funeral contract of an insured or annuitant, provided the face amount of the life insurance policy, or the total consideration

paid for such annuity, does not exceed the amount set forth in Section 626.785, Florida Statutes-$7:560. Any increase in the death

benefit of such life insurance or annuity shall be limited to the reasonably anticipated increase in the retail price of the services and
merchandise specified in the preneed funeral contract,

{b) and (c) no change.

{(6) no change.

Specific Authority 624.308(1) FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.785, 626.9541(1)(a).(t), 627.410 FS. History-New 4-8-97, Formerly 4-

148001 Amended




. 690-148.001
v o Rulemaking Authority

624,308 Rules.—
(1) The department and the commission may each adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1)
and 120.54 to implement provisions of law conferring duties upon the department or the
commission, respectively.
624.307 General powers,; duties.—
(1) The department and office shall enforce the provisions of this code and shall execute
the duties imposed upon them by this code, within the respective jurisdiction of each, as
provided by law.
626.785 Qualifications for license.—

(1} The department shall not grant or issue a license as life agent to any individual found
by it to be untrustworthy or incompetent, or who does not meet the following qualifications
(a) Must be a natural person of at least 18 years of age.

(b) Must be a United States citizen or legal alien who possesses work authorization from
the United States Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services and a bona fide resident
of this state.

(c) Must not be an employee of the United States Department of Veterans Affairs or state
service office, as referred to in s. 626.788.

(d) Must not be a funeral director or direct disposer, or an employee or representatlve
thereof, or have an office in, or in connection with, a funeral establishment, except that a
funeral establishment may contract with a life insurance agent to sell a preneed contract as
defined in s. 497.005. Notwithstanding other provisions of this chapter, such insurance
agent may sell limited policies of insurance covering the expense of final disposition or
burial of an insured in the amount of $12,500, plus an annual percentage increase based on
the Annual Consumer Price Index compiled by the United States Department of Labor
beginning with the Annual Consumer Price Index announced by the United States
Department of Labor for the year 2003.

(e) Must take and pass any examination for license required under s, 626.221,

(f) Must be qualified as to knowledge, experience, or instruction in the business of
insurance and meet the requirements relative thereto provided in s. 626.7851,

(2) An individual who is a bona fide resident of this state shall be deemed to meet the
residence requirement of paragraph (1)(b), notwithstanding the existence at the time of
application for license of a license in his or her name on the records of another state as a
resident licensee of such other state, if the applicant furnishes a letter of clearance
satisfactory to the department that the resident licenses have been canceled or changed to
a nonresident basis and that he or she is in good standing.

(3) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a funeral director, a direct
disposer, or an employee of a funeral establishment that holds a certificate of authority
pursuant to s. 497,452 may obtain an agent’s license to sell only policies of life insurance
covering the expense of a prearrangement for funeral services or merchandise so as to
provide funds at the time the services and merchandise are needed. The face amount of
insurance covered by any such policy shall not exceed $12,500, plus an annual percentage
increase based on the Annual Consumer Price Index compiled by the United States
Department of Labor, beginning with the Annual Consumer Price Index announced by the
United States Department of Labor for 2003.

626.9541 Unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices
defined.—

(1) UNFAIR METHODS OF COMPETITION AND UNFAIR OR DECEPTIVE ACTS.—The following
are defined as unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices:
(a) Misrepresentations and false advertising of insurance policies.—Knowingly making,
issuing, circulating, or causing to be made, issued, or circulated, any estimate, illustration,
circular, statement, sales presentation, omission, or comparison which:

1. Misrepresents the benefits, advantages, conditions, or terms of any insurance policy




690-148.001
Rulemaking Authority

2. Misrepresents the dividends or share of the surplus to be received on any insurance
policy,
3. Makes any false or misleading statements as to the dividends or share of surplus
previously paid on any insurance policy.
4, Is misleading, or is a misrepresentation, as to the financial condition of any person or as
to the legal reserve system upon which any life insurer operates.
5. Uses any name or title of any insurance policy or class of insurance policies
misrepresenting the true nature thereof.
6. Is a misrepresentation for the purpose of inducing, or tending to induce, the lapse,
. forfeiture, exchange, conversion, or surrender of any insurance policy.
7. Is a misrepresentation for the purpose of effecting a pledge or assignment of, or
effecting a loan against, any insurance policy.
8. Misrepresents any insurance policy as being shares of stock or misrepresents ownership
interest in the company.

9. Uses any advertisement that would mislead or otherwise cause a reasonable person to
believe mistakenly that the state or the Federal Government is responsible for the insurance
sales activities of any person or stands behind any person’s credit or that any person, the
state, or the Federal Government guarantees any returns on insurance products or is a
source of payment of any insurance obligation of or sold by any person.

(t) Certain life insurance relations with funeral directors prohibited.—

1. No life insurer shall permit any funeral director or direct disposer to act as its
representative, adjuster, claim agent, special claim agent, or agent for such insurer in
soliciting, negotiating, or effecting contracts of life insurance on any plan or of any nature
issued by such insurer or in collecting premiums for holders of any such contracts except as
prescribed in 5. 626.785(3).

2. No life insurer shali:
a. Affix, or permit to be affixed, advertising matter of any kind or character of any licensed
' funeral director or direct disposer to such policies of insurance.
b. Circulate, or permit to be circulated, any such advertising matter with such insurance
policies.
c. Attempt in any manner or form to influence policyholders of the insurer to employ the
services of any particular licensed funeral director or direct disposer.

3. No such insurer shall maintain, or permit its agent to maintain, an office or place of
business in the office, establishment, or place of business of any funeral director or direct
disposer in this state.

627.410 Filing, approval of forms.—

(1) No basic insurance policy or annuity contract form, or application form where written
application is required and is to be made a part of the policy or contract, or group
certificates issued under a master contract delivered in this state, or printed rider or
endorsement form or form of renewal certificate, shall be delivered or issued for delivery in
this state, unless the form has been filed with the office by or in behalf of the insurer which
proposes to use such form and has been approved by the office. This provision does not
apply to surety bonds or to policies, riders, endorsements, or forms of unique character
which are designed for and used with relation to insurance upon a particular subject (other
than as to health insurance), or which relate to the manner of distribution of benefits or to
the reservation of rights and benefits under life or health insurance policies and are used at
the request of the individual policyholder, contract holder, or certificateholder. As to group
insurance policies effectuated and delivered outside this state but covering persons resident
m this state, the group certificates to be delivered or issued for delivery in this state shall be
filed with the office for information purposes only.

(2) Every such filing must be made not less than 30 days in advance of any such use or
delivery. At the expiration of such 30 days, the form so filed will be deemed approved
unless prior thereto it has been affirmatively approved or disapproved by order of the office.



690-148.001
Rulemaking Authority

The approval of any such form by the office constitutes a waiver of any unexpired portion of
such waiting period. The office may extend by not more than an additional 15 days the
period within which it may so affirmatively approve or disapprove any such form, by giving
notice of such extension before expiration of the initial 30-day period. At the expiration of
any such period as so extended, and in the absence of such prior affirmative approval or

disapproval, any such form shall be deemed approved.

(3) The office may, for cause, withdraw a previous approval. No insurer shall issue or use
any form disapproved by the office, or as to which the office has withdrawn approval, after
the effective date of the order of the office.

(4) The office may, by order, exempt from the requirements of this section for so long as it
deems proper any insurance document or form or type thereof as specified in such order, to
which, in its opinion, this section may not practicably be applied, or the filing and approval
of which are, in its opinion, not desirable or necessary for the protection of the public.

(5) This section also applies to any such form used by domestic insurers for delivery in a
jurisdiction outside this state if the insurance supervisory official of such jurisdiction informs
the office that such form is not subject to approval or disapproval by such official, and upon
the order of the office requiring the form to be submitted to it for the purpose. The
applicable same standards apply to such forms as apply to forms for domestic use,
(6)(a) An insurer shall not deliver or issue for delivery or renew in this state any health
insurance policy form until it has filed with the office a copy of every applicable rating
manual, rating schedule, change in rating manual, and change in rating schedule; if rating
manuals and rating schedules are not applicable, the insurer must file with the office
applicable premium rates and any change in applicable premium rates. This paragraph does
not apply to group health insurance policies, effectuated and delivered in this state, insuring.
groups of 51 or more persons, except for Medicare supplement insurance, long-term care
' insurance, and any coverage under which the increase in claim costs over the lifetime of the
contract due to advancing age or duration is prefunded in the premium.

(b} The commission may establish by rule, for each type of health insurance form,
procedures to be used in ascertaining the reasonableness of benefits in relation to premium
rates and may, by rule, exempt from any requirement of paragraph (a) any health
insurance policy form or type thereof (as specified in such rule) to which form or type such
requirements may not be practically applied or to which form or type the application of such
requirements is not desirable or necessary for the protection of the public. With respect to
any health insurance policy form or type thereof which.is exempted by rule from any
requirement of paragraph (a), premium rates filed pursuant to ss. 627.640 and 627.662
shall be for informational purposes,

(c) Every filing made pursuant to this subsection shall be made within the same time
perlod provided in, and shall be deemed to be approved under the same conditions as those
provided in, subsection (2).

(d) Every filing made pursuant to this subsectlon, except disability income policies and
accidental death policies, shall be prohibited from applying the following rating practices:
1. Select and ultimate premium schedules.

2. Premium class definitions which classify insured based on year of issue or duration since
issue.

3. Attained age premium structures on policy forms under which more than 50 percent of
the policies are issued to persons age 65 or over,

(e) Except as provided in subparagraph 1., an insurer shall continue to make available for
purchase any individual policy form issued on or after October 1, 1993. A policy form shall
not be considered to be available for purchase unless the insurer has actively offerecl it for
sale In the previous 12 months.

1. Aninsurer may discontinue the availability of a policy form if the insurer provides to the
office in writing its decision at least 30 days prior to discontinuing the availability of the




690-148.001
Rulemaking Authority

form of the policy or certificate. After receipt of the notice by the office, the insurer shall no
longer offer for sale the policy form or certificate form in this state.

2. An insurer that discontinues the availability of a policy form pursuant to subparagraph
1. shall not file for approval a new policy form providing similar benefits as the discontinued
form for a period of 5 years after the insurer provides notice to the office of the
discontinuance. The period of discontinuance may be reduced if the office determines that a

' shorter period is appropriate.
3. The experience of all policy forms providing similar benefits shall be combined for all
rating purposes.

(7)(a) Each insurer subject to the requirements of subsection (6) shall make an annual
filing with the office no later than 12 months after its previous filing, demonstrating the
reasonableness of benefits in relation to premium rates. The office, after receiving a request
to be exempted from the provisions of this section, may, for good cause due to insignificant
numbers of policies in force or insignificant premlum volume, exempt a company, by line of
coverage, from filing rates or rate certification as required by this section.

(b) The filing required by this subsection shall be satisfied by one of the following

' methods:

1. Arate filing prepared by an actuary which contains documentation demonstrating the
reasonableness of benefits in relation to premiums charged in accordance with the
applicable rating laws and rules promulgated by the commission.

2. If no rate change Iis proposed, a filing which consists of a certification by an actuary that
benefits are reasonable in relation to premiums currently charged in accordance with
applicable laws and rules promulgated by the commission.

(¢) As used in this section, “actuary” means an individual who is a member of the Society
of Actuaries or the American Academy of Actuaries. If an insurer does not employ or
otherwise retain the services of an actuary, the insurer’s certification shall be prepared by
insurer personnel or consultants with a minimum of 5 years’ experience in insurance
ratemaking. The chief executive officer of the insurer shali review and signh the certification
indicating his or her agreement with its conclusions.

(d) If at the time a filing is required under this section an insurer is in the process of
completing a rate review, the insurer may apply to the office for an extension of up to an
additional 30 days in which to make the filing. The request for extension must be received
by the office no later than the date the filing is due.

(e) If an insurer fails to meet the filing requirements of this subsection and does not
submit the filing within 60 days following the date the filing is due, the office may, in
addition to any other penalty authorized by law, order the insurer to discontinue the
issuance of policies for which the required filing was not made, until such time as the office
determines that the required filing is properly submitted.

(8)(a) For the purposes of subsections (6} and (7), benefits of an individual accident and
health insurance policy form, including Medicare supplement policies as defined in s.
627.672, when authorized by rules adopted by the commission, and excluding long-term
care insurance policies as defined in s, §27.9404, and other policy forms under which more
than 50 percent of the policies are issued to individuals age 65 and over, are deemed to be
reasonable in relation to premium rates if the rates are filed pursuant to a loss ratio
guarantee and both the initial rates and the durational and lifetime loss ratios have been
approved by the office, and such benefits shall continue to be deemed reasonable for
renewal rates while the insurer complies with such guarantee, provided the currently
expected lifetime loss ratio is not more than 5 percent less than the filed lifetime loss ratio
as certified to by an actuary. The office shall have the right to bring an administrative action
should it deem that the lifetime loss ratio will not be met. For Medicare supplement filings,
the office may withdraw a previously approved filing which was made pursuant to a loss
ratio guarantee if it determines that the filing is not in compliance with ss. 627.671-627.675
or the currently expected lifetime loss ratio is less than the filed lifetime loss ratio as



690-148.001
Rulemaking Authority

certified by an actuary in the initial guaranteed loss ratio filing. If this section conflicts with
ss. 627.671-627.675, ss. 627.671-627.675 shall control.

{b) The renewai premium rates shall be deemed to be approved upon filing with the office
if the filing is accompanied by the most current approved loss ratio guarantee. The loss ratio
guarantee shall be in writing, shall be signed by an officer of the insurer, and shall contain
at least:

1. A recitation of the anticipated lifetime and durational target loss ratios contained in the
actuarial memorandum filed with the policy form when it was otiginally approved. The
durational target loss ratios shall be calculated for 1-year experience periods. If statutory
changes have rendered any portion of such actuarial memorandum obsolete, the loss ratio
guarantee shall also include an amendment to the actuarial memorandum reflecting current
law and containing new lifetime and durational loss ratio targets.

2 A guarantee that the applicable loss ratios for the experience period in which the new
rates will take effect, and for each experience period thereafter until new rates are filed, will
meet the loss ratios referred to in subparagraph 1.

3. A guarantee that the applicable loss ratio results for the experience period will be
independently audited at the insurer’'s expense. The audit shal! be performed in the second
calendar quarter of the year following the end of the experience period, and the audited
results shall be reported te the office no later than the end of such quarter. The commission
shall establish by rule the minimum information reasonably necessary to be included in the
_report, The audit shall be done in accordance with accepted accounting and actuarial
principles.

4. A guarantee that affected policyholders in this state shall be issued a proportional
refund, based on the premium earned, of the amount necessary to bring the applicable
experience period loss ratio up to the durational target loss ratio referred to in
subparagraph 1. The refund shall be made to ali policyholders in this state who are insured
under the applicable policy form as of the last day of the experience period, except that no
refund need be made to a policyholder in an amount less than $10. Refunds less than $10
shall be aggregated and paid pro rata to the policyholders receiving refunds. The refund
shall include interest at the then-current variable loan interest rate for life insurance policies
established by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, from the end of the
experience period until the date of payment. Payments shall be made during the third
calendar gquarter of the year following the experience period for which a refund is
determined to be due. However, no refunds shall be made until 60 days after the filing of
the audit report in order that the office has adequate time to review the report.

5. A guarantee that if the applicable loss ratio exceeds the durational target loss ratio for
that experience period by more than 20 percent, provided there are at least 2,000
policyholders on the form nationwide or, if not, then accumulated each calendar year until
2,000 policyholder years is reached, the insurer, if directed by the office, shall withdraw the
policy form for the purposes of issuing new palicies.

{c) As used in this subsection:

1. “Loss ratio” means the ratio of incurred ciaims to earned premium.

2. “Applicable loss ratio” means the loss ratio attributable solely to this state if there are
2,000 or more policyholders in the state. If there are 500 or more policyholders in this state
but less than 2,000, it is the linear interpolation of the nationwide loss ratio and the toss
ratio for this state. If there are less than 500 policyholders in this state, it is the nationwide
loss ratio.

3. “Experience period” means the period, ordinarily a calendar year, for which a loss ratio
guarantee is calculated.







MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 24, 2014

TO: Kevin M. McCarty, Commissioner, Office of Insurance Regulation
THROUGH: Belinda Miller, General Cpufisel

FROM: Dennis Threadgill

Stephen FredrickSo

SUBJECT: Cabinet Agenda for April 22, 2014
Request for Approval to Publish Repeal to Rule
. Chapters 690-123 Civil Remedy and 690-228,; Continuing Education
Assignment # 130000-12 and 130001-12

The Office of Insurance Regulation requests that Chapters 690-228 and 680-123,
Florida Administrative Code, proposed repeal be presented to the Cabinet aides on or
before April 16, 2014 ,and to the Financial Services Commission on April 16, 2014,
with a request to approve for publication the proposed rule chapter.

Rule Chapter 690-123, Florida Administrative Code, was promulgated to implement the
provisions of Section 624.155, Florida Statutes. Section 624.155, Florida Statutes,
permits any party to bring a civil action against an insurer when such person is
damaged by a violation of certain enumerated provisions of the Florida Insurance Code.
As a condition precedent to bringing an action under Section 624.155, Florida Statutes,
the insured is required to give the Department of Financial Services 60 day written
notice of the violation. The notice is required to be provided to the Department of
Financial Services on a form provided by the Department and must include the statutory
provision violated, the facts and circumstances giving rise to the violation and the name
of any individual involved in the violation.

Section 624.155, Florida Statutes, gives the Department of Financial Services authority
to enforce the statute and not the Office. As a resuit the Office does not have sufficient
statutory authority to enforce the Rules contained in Rule Chapter 690-123 and these
rules should be repealed. Furthermore, the Department of Financial Services has
developed its own rule and form to implement the provisions of Section 624.155, Florida
Statutes. '

Rule Chapter 690-228 was promulgated to establish requirements and standards for
continuing education courses and records for persons: (1) licensed to solicit or sell
.insurance or act as limited surety or bail bond agents, (2) licensed to adjust workers'
compensation claims in this state and (3) authorized to offer or teach related
coursework in this state.

Section 626.2816, Florida Statutes, specifically requires the Department of Financial
Services to adopt rules relating to continuing education of this type. Towards this end,



the Department of Financial Services has promulgéted Rule Chapter 690-228. The
Office does not have sufficient statutory authority to enforce the rules contained in Rule
Chapter 690-228 and as a result this rule chapter should be repealed.

Sections 624.308(1), 624.155, 624.307(1), F.S., provide rulemaking authority and laws -
implemented for these rules.

Stephen Fredrickson is the attorney handling these rules. Attached are: 1) the proposed
rule(s), 2) any incorporated materials, such as forms; and 3) copies of the rulemaking
statutory authority and law implemented.

Approved for signature:

oty

Belinda Miller, General Counsel

Approved for submission to Financial
Services Commission:

M’McCart%-e/ ommissioner
fice of Insurance Regulation




690-123.001 Purpose
690-123.002 Procedure

690-123.001 Purpose.

Specific Authority 624.308(1) FS. Law Implemented 624.155, 624.307(1) FS. History—New 4-25-90, Formerly 4-103.001, 4-123,00! Repealed.

690-123.002 Procedure.

Specific Authority 624.308(1) FS. Law In_fplemented 624.155 FS. History—New 4-25-90, Forierly 4-103.002, Amended 8-28-00, Formerly 4-
123.002 Repealed..



v

690-123
Rulemaking Authority

624.308 Rules.—

(1) The department and the commission may each adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1)
and 120.54 to implement provisions of law conferring duties upon the department or the
commission, respectively.

624.155 Civil remedy.— A

(1) Any person may bring a civil action against an insurer when such person is damaged:
(a) By a violation of any of the following provisions by the insurer:

1. Section 626.9541(1)(i), (0), or (x);

Section 626.9551;

Section 626.9705;

Section 626.9706;

Section 626.9707; or

Section §27.7283.

(b) By the commission of any of the followmg acts by the insurer:

1. Mot attempting in good faith to settle claims when, under all the circumstances, it could
and should have done so, had it acted fairly and honestly toward its insured and with due
regard for her or his interests;

2. Making claims payments to insureds or beneficiaries not accompan;ed by a statement
setting forth the coverage under which payments are being made; or

3. Except as to liability coverages, failing to promptly settle claims, when the obligation to
settle a claim has become reasonably clear, under one portion of the insurance policy

coverage in order to influence settlements under other portions of the insurance policy
coverage.

SURwWN

Notwithstanding the provisions of the above to the contrary, a person pursuing a remedy under this

section need not prove that such act was committed or performed with such frequency as to indicate a
general business practice.

(2) Any party may bring a civil action against an unauthorized insurer if such party is
damaged by a violation of s. 624.401 by the unauthorized insurer.

(3)(a) As acondition precedent to bringing an action under this section, the department
and the authorized insurer must have been given 60 days’ written notice of the violation. If
the department returns a notice for lack of specificity, the 60-day time period shall not
begin until a proper notice is filed.

(b) The notice shall be on a form provided by the department and shall state with
specificity the following information, and such other information as the department may
require:

1. The statutory provision, including the specific language of the statute, which the
authorized insurer allegedly violated.

2. The facts and circumstances giving rise to the violation.

3. The name of any individual involved in the violation.

4. Reference to specific policy language that is relevant to the violation, if any. If the
person bringing the civil action is a third party claimant, she or he shall not be required to
reference the specific policy language if the authorized insurer has not provided a copy of
the policy to the third party claimant pursuant to written request.

5. A statement that the notice is given in order to perfect the right to pursue the civil
remedy authorized by this section.

(¢) Within 20 days of receipt of the notice, the department may return any notice that
does not provide the specific information required by this section, and the department shall
indicate the specific deficiencies contained in the notice. A determination by the department

to return a notice for lack of specificity shall be exempt from the requirements of chapter
120,



690-123
Rulemaking Authority

(d) No action shall lie if, within 60 days after filing notice, the damages are paid or the
circumstances giving rise to the violation are corrected.

(e) The authorized insurer that is the recipient of a notice filed pursuant to this section
shall report to the department on the disposition of the alleged violation.

(f) The applicable statute of limitations for an action under this section shall be tolled for a
period of 65 days by the mailing of the notice required by this subsection or the mailing of a
subsequent notice required by this subsection.

(4} Upon adverse adjudication at trial or upon appeal, the authorized insurer shall be liable
for damages, together with court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by the
plaintiff,

{5) No punitive damages shall be awarded under this section unless the acts giving rise to

the violation occur with such frequency as to indicate a general business practice and these
acts are:

{a) Willful, wanton, and malicious;
{(b) In reckless disregard for the rights of any insured; or
(c) In reckless disregard for the rights of a beneficiary under a life insurance contract.

Any person who pursues a claim under this subsection shall post in advance the costs of discovery, Such
costs shall be awarded to the authorized insurer if no punitive damages are awarded to the plaintiff.

(6) This section shall not be construed to authorize a class action suit against an
authorized insurer or a civil action against the commission, the office, or the department or
any of their employees, or to create a cause of action when an authorized heaith insurer
refuses to pay a claim for reimbursement on the ground that the charge for a service was
unreasonably high or that the service provided was not medically necessary.

(7) In the absence of expressed language to the contrary, this section shall not be
construed to authorize a civil action or create a cause of action against an authorized
insurer or its employees who, in good faith, release information about an insured or an
insurance policy to-a law enforcement agency in furtherance of an investigation of a criminal
or fraudulent act reiating to a motor vehicle theft or a motor vehicle insurance claim.

(8) The civil remedy specified in this section does not preempt any other remedy or cause
of action provided for pursuant to any other statute or pursuant to the common law of this
state. Any person may obtain a judgment under either the common-taw remedy of bad faith
or this statutory remedy, but shall not be entitled to a judgment under both remedies. This
section shall not be construed to create a common-law cause of action. The damages
recoverable pursuant to this section shall include those damages which are a reasonably
foreseeable result of a specified violation of this section by the authorized insurer and may
include an award or judgment in an amount that exceeds the policy limits. _
(9) A surety issuing a payment or performance bond on the construction or maintenance of
a building or roadway project is not an insurer for purposes of subsection (1).

624.307 General powers; duties.—
(1) The department and office shall enforce the provisions of this code and shall execute

the duties imposed upon them by this code, within the respective jurisdiction of each, as
provided by law.



690-228.010
690-228.020
690-228.030
690-228.040
690-228.050
690-228,060
690-228.080
690-228.090
690-228.100
690-228.110
690-228.120

690-228.130 -

690-228.150
690-228.160
690-228.180
690-228.190
690-228.210
690-228.220
690-228.230
690-228.240
690-228.250

Purpose

Scope -

Definitions

Course Providers

School Officials

Instructors and Supervising Instructors
Course Approval; Requirements; Guidelines
Course Offerings and Attendance Records
Certification of Students

Textbooks

Course Fees

Facilities

Advertising

‘Prohibited Practices

Forms
Transition Time in the Event of Rule Changes

Penalties for Course Providers, School Officials, Supervising Instructors, Instructors, and Monitors
Licensee Compliance; Requirements; Penalties for Non-Compliance

Extensions

Applicability of Continuing Education Requirement for New Licensees

Exempted Licensees

690-228.010 Purpose.

Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.2815, 626.2816, 626.2816(2), 626.869(5) FS. History—-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-

29-01, Formerly 4-228.010 Repealed.

690-228.020 Scope.

Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307¢1), 624.501, 626.2815, 626.869(3), 648.385 FS. History-New 8-17-93, Amended 4_\29_

01, Formerly 4-228.020 Repealed.

690-228.030 Definitions.

Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law lmplemented 624.307(1), 626.2815, 626.2816(2), (3), 626.869(5), 648.26, 648.386 FS. History-New 8-17-93

Amended 4-11-94, 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228,030 Repealed.

690-228.040 Course Providers.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.501(20), 626.2815, 626.869(5), 648.386 FS. History-New 8-17-93,
Amended 4-11-94, 2-28-95, 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.040 Repealed.

690-228.050 School Officials.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.501(20)(c), 626.2813, 626.869(5), 648.36 FS. History—New 8-17-93,
Amended 4-11-94, 2-28-95, 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.050 Repealed.



690-228.060 Instructors and Supervising Instructors.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.501(20)(c), 626.2813, 626.869(5), 648.386 FS. History-New 8-17-93,
Amended 4-11-94, 2-28-95, 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.060 Repealed.

690-228.080 Course Approval; Requirements; Guidelines.

Specific Authority 624,308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.501(20), 626.2815, 626.869(5), 648 386 FS. History-New 8-17-93,
Amended 4-1]-94, 2-28-95, 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.080 Repealed

690-228.090 Course Offerings and Atiendance Records.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.2815, 626.869(3), 648.386 FS. History—-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-11.94,
4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.090 Repealed.

690-228.100 Certification of Students,

Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.501(20)(c), 626.2815, 626.869(5) FS. HJstory—-New 8-17-93, Amended 4 11-94,
4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.1 00 Repealed.

690-228.110 Textbooks.

Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1),.626.2815. 626.869(5) FS. History—New 8-17-93, Amended 4-29-0}1, Former!y‘z;_
228,110 Repealed.

690-228.120 Course Fees,

Specific Authority 624.308 FS, Law Implemented 624 307(1), 626.2815, 626.869(5) FS. History-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-29-01, Formerly 4-
228.120 Repealed.

690-228.130 Facilities.

Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.2815, 626.869(5) FS. History-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-29-01, Formerly 4-
228.130 Repealed.

690-228,150 Advertising.

Specific Authority 624.308, 626.9611 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1). 626.2815, 626.869(5), 626.9541¢1)(b) FS. HistoryNew §-17-93, Amended
4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.150 Repealed.

690-228.169 Prohibited Practices.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.2815, 626.869(5), 648.386 FS. History—New 8-17-93, Amended 4-29-01,
Formerly 4-228.160 Repealed.



¥

690-228.180 Forms.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.501, 626.2813, 626.8419(1), 626.869(5), 627.952(1)(h), 648.386 FS. .
History-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.180 Repealed,

690-228.190 Transition Time in the Event of Rule Changes.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.501, 626.2815, 626.611, 626.621, 626.681, 626.869(5), 648386 FS.
History-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.190 Repealed.

690-228.210 Penaities for Course Providers, School Officials, Supervising Instructors, Instructors, and Monitors.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.4211, 626.2815, 626.611, 626.621, 626.869(5), 648.385, 648.386 FS.
History-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-11-94, 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.210 Repealed.

690-228.220 Licensee Compliance; Requirements; Penalties for Non-Compliance.

Specific Authority 624.308, 648.26 FS. Law Implemented 624.307¢1), 616.221(2)(d), 626.2815, 626.611, 626.621, 626.681, 626.69!,. 626.869(5),
648.385 FS. History—New 8-17-93, Amended 4-11-94, 4-29-01, Formerly 4-228.220 Repealed,

690-228.230 Extensions,

Specific- Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.501, 626.2815, 626.869(3) FS. History-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-11-94, 4-29-
01, Formerly 4-228.230 Repealed,

690-228.240 Applicability of Continuing Education Requirement for New Licensees.

Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implernénted 624.307(1), 626.2815, 626.869(5) FS. History—-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-11-94, 4-29-01,
Formerly 4-228.240 Repealed.

690-228.250 Exempted Licensees.

Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.2815(3)(c), 626.869(5) FS. History-New 8-17-93, Amended 4-29-01, Formerly
4-228.250 Repealed. :



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

624.308 Rules.—

(1) The department and the commission may each adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1)
and 120.54 to implement provisions of law conferring duties upon the department or the
commission, respectively.

(2) In addition to any other penalty provided, willful violation of any such rule shall subject
the violator to such suspension or revocation of certificate of authority or license as may be
applicable under this code as for violation of the provision as to which such rule relates.

624,307 General powers; duties.—

(1) The department and office shall enforce the provisions of this code and shall execute
the duties imposed upon them by this code, within the respective jurisdiction of each, as
provided by law. '

648.26 Department of Financial Services; administration.—

(1) The department shall administer the provisions of this chapter as provided in this
chapter. ‘

(a) The department has authority to adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to
impiement the provisions of this chapter conferring powers or duties upon it.

(b) The department may employ and discharge such employees, examiners, counsel, and
other assistants as shail be deemed necessary, and it shall prescribe their duties; their
compensation shall be the same as other state employees receive for similar services.

(2) The department shalt adopt a seal by which its proceedings are authenticated. Any
written instrument purporting to be a copy of any action, proceeding, or finding of fact by
the department, or any record of the department authenticated by the seal, shall be
accepted by all the courts of this state as prima facie evidence of the contents thereof.

(3) The papers, documents, reports, or any other investigatory records of the department
are confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119,07(1) until such investigation is
completed or ceases to be active. For the purpose of this section, an investigation is
considered “active” while the investigation is being conducted by the department with a
reasonable, good faith belief that it may lead to the filing of administrative, civil, or ¢riminal
proceedings. An investigation does not cease to be active if the department is proceeding
with reasonable dispatch and there is good faith belief that action may be initiated by the
department or other administrative or law enforcement agency.

626.9611 Rules.—

(1) The department or commission may, in accordance with chapter 120, adopt reasonable
rules as are necessary or proper to identify specific methods of competition or acts or
practices which are prohibited by s. 626.9541 or s. 626.9551, but the rules shall not enlarge
upon or extend the provisions of ss. 626.9541 and 626,9551.

(2) The department and the commission shall, in accordance with chapter 120, adopt rules
to protect members of the United States Armed Forces from dishonest or predatory
insurance sales practices by insurers and insurance agents. The rules shall identify specific
false, misleading, deceptive, or unfair methods of competition, acts, or practices which are
prohibited by s, 626,9541 or s. 626.9551. The rules shall be based upon model rules or
model laws adopted by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners which identify
certain insurance practices involving the solicitation or sale of insurance and annuities to
members of the United States Armed Forces which are false, misleading, deceptive, or
unfair.




690-228
Rulemaking Authority

626.2815 Continuing education requirements.—

(1) The purpose of this section is to establish requirements and standards for continuing
education courses for individuals licensed to solicit, sell, or adjust insurance in the state,

(2} Except as otherwise provided in this section, this section applies to individuals licensed
to engage in the sale of insurance or adjustment of insurance claims in this state for all lines
of insurance for which an examination is required for licensing and to each insurer,
employer, or appointing entity, including, but not limited to, those created or existing
pursuant to s. 627.351. This section does not apply to an individual who holds a license for
the sale of any line of insurance for which an examination is not required by the laws of this
state or who holds a limited license as a crop or hail and multiple-peril crop insurance agent,
Licensees who are unable to comply with the continuing education requirements due to
active duty in the military may submit a written request for a waiver to the department.
1(3) Each licensee subject to this section must, except as set forth in paragraphs (b), (<),
{d), and (f), complete a minimum of 24 hours of continuing education courses every 2 years
in basic or higher-level courses prescribed by this section or in other courses approved by
the department.

(a) Each licensee must complete 3 hours of continuing education, approved by the
department, every 2 years on the subject matter of ethics. Each licensed general lines agent
and customer representative must complete 1 hour of continuing education, approved by
the department, every 2 years on the subject matter of premium discounts available on
property insurance policies based on various hurricane mitigation options and the means for
obtaining the discounts.

(b) A licensee who has been licensed for 6 or more years must complete 20 hours of
continuing education every 2 years in intermediate or advanced-level courses prescribed by
this section or in other courses approved by the department.

(c) A licensee who has been licensed for 25 years or more and is a CLU or a CPCU or has a
Bachelor of Science degree in risk management or insurance with evidence of 18 or more
semester hours in upper-level insurance-related courses must complete 10 hours of
continuing education courses every 2 years in courses prescribed by this section or in other
courses approved by the department.

{d) An individual who holds a license as a customer representative, limited customer
representative, title agent, motor vehicle physical damage and mechanical breakdown
insurance agent, or an industrial fire insurance or burglary insurance agent and who is not a
licensed life or health agent, must complete 10 hours of continuing education courses every
2 years.

(e} An individual who holds a license to solicit or sell life or health insurance and a license
to solicit or sell property, casualty, surety, or surplus lines insurance must complete courses
in life or health insurance for one-half of the total hours required and courses in property,
casualty, surety, or surplus lines insurance for one-half of the total hours required.
However, a licensee who hoids an industrial fire or burglary insurance license and wheo is a
licensed life or health agent must complete 4 hours of continuing education courses every 2
years related to industrial fire or burglary insurance and the remaining number of hours of
continuing education courses related to life or health insurance.

(f) An individual subject to chapter 648 must complete a minimum of 14 hours of
continuing education courses every 2 years.

(g) Excess hours accumulated during any 2-year compliance period may be carried forward
to the next compliance period.

(h) An individual teaching an approved course of instruction or lecturing at any approved
seminar and attending the entire course or seminar qualifies for the same number of
classroom hours as would be granted to a person taking and successfully completing such
course or seminar, Credit is limited to the number of hours actually taught unless a person
attends the entire course or seminar. An individual who is an official of or employed by a
governmental entity in this state and serves as a professor, instructor, or 2in another



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

position or office, the duties and responsibilities of which are determined by the department
to require monitoring and review of insurance laws or insurance regulations and practices, is
exempt from this section.

(4) Compliance with continuing education requirements is a condition precedent to the
issuance, continuation, reinstatement, or renewal of any appointment subject to this
section. However:

{a) An appointing entity, except one that appoints individuals who are employees or
exclusive independent contractors of the appointing entity, may not require, directly or
indirectly, as a condition of such appointment or the continuation of such appointment, the
taking of an approved course or program by any appointee or potential appointee which is
not of the appointee’s choosing,

(b) Any entity created or existing pursuant to s. 627.35], may require employees to take
training of any type relevant to their employment but may not require appointees who are
not employees to take any approved course or program unless the course or program deals
solely with the appointing entity’s internal procedures or products or with subjects
substantially unique to the appointing entity.

(5) For good cause shown, the department may grant an extension of time during which
the requirements of this section may be completed, but such extension may not exceed 1
year.

(6) A nonresident licensee who must complete continuing education requirements in his or
her home state may use the home state requirements to also meet this state’s continuing
education requirements if the licensee’s home state recognizes reciprocity with this state’s
continuing education requirements. A nonresident licensee whose home state does not have
a continuing education requirement but is licensed for the same class of business in another
state that has a continuing education requirement may comply with this section by
furnishing proof of compliance with the other state’s requirement if that state has a
reciprocal agreement with this state relative to continuing education. A nonresident licensee
whose home state does hot have such continuing education requirements, and who is not
licensed as a nonresident licensee in a state that has continuing education requirements and
reciprocates with this state, must meet the continuing education requirements of this state.
3(7) Any person who holds a license to solicit or sell life insurance in this state must
complete .a minimum of 3 hours in continuing education, approved by the department, on
the subject of suitability in annuity and life insurance transactions. This requirement does
not apply to an agent who does not have any active life insurance or annuity contracts. In
applying this exemption, the department may require the filing of a certification attesting
that the agent has not sold life insurance or annuities during the continuing education
compliance cycle in question and does not have any active life insurance or annuity

* contracts. A licensee may use the hours obtained under this paragraph to satisfy the
requirement for continuing education in ethics under paragraph (3)(a).

(8) The following courses may be completed in order to meet the elective continuing
education course requirements:

(a) Any part of the Life Underwriter Training Council Life Course Curriculum: 24 hours,
Health Course: 12 hours.

{b) Any part of the American College "CLU" diploma curriculum 24 hours,

(c) Any part of the Insurance Institute of America’s program in general insurance: 12
hours.

(d) Any part of the American Institute for Property and Liability Underwriters'’ Chartered
Property Casualty Underwriter {CPCU) professional designation program: 24 hours.

(e) Any part of the Certified Insurance Counselor program: 21 hours.

(f}y Any part of the Accredited Advisor in Insurance: 21 hours,

(g) In the case of title agents, completion of the Certified Land Closer (CLC) professional
.designation program and receipt of the designation: 24 hours.



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

(h) In the case of title agents, completion of the Certified Land Searcher (CLS) professional
designation program and receipt of the designation: 24 hours,

(i) Any insurance-related course that is approved by the department and taught by an
 accredited college or university per credit hour granted: 12 hours.
(3) Any course, including courses relating to agency management or errors and omissions,
developed or sponsored by an authorized insurer or recognized agents’ association or
insurance trade association or an independent study program of instruction, subject to
approval by the department, qualifies for the equivalency of the number of classroom hours
assigned by the department. However, unless otherwise provided in this section, continuing
education hours may not be credited toward meeting the requirements of this section unless
the course is provided by classrooem instruction or results in a monitored examination. A
monitored examination is not required for:
1. An independent study program of instruction presented through interactive, online
~technology that the department determines has sufficient internal testing to validate the
student’s full comprehension of the materials presented; or
2. Anvindependent study program of instruction presented on paper or in printed material
which imposes a final closed book examination that meets the requirements of the
department’s rule for self-study courses, The examination may be taken without a proctor if
the student presents to the provider a sworn affidavit certifying that the student did not
consult any written materials or receive outside assistance of any kind or from any person,
directly or indirectly, while taking the examination, If the student is an employee of an
agency or corporate entity, the student’s supervisor or a manager or owner of the agency or
corporate entity must also sign the sworn affidavit. If the student is self-employed, a sole
proprietor, or a partner, or if the examination is administered online, the sworn affidavit
must also be signed by a disinterested third party. The sworn affidavit must be received by
the approved provider before reporting continuing education credits to the department.
(9) FEach person or entity sponsoring a course for continuing education credit must furnish,
within 21 days after completion of the course, in a form satisfactory to the department or its
designee, a roster showing the name and license number of all persons successfully
completing such course and requesting credit.
(10) The department may immediately terminate or refuse to renew the appointment of an
agent or adjuster who has been notified by the department that his or her continuing
education requirements have not been certified, unless the agent or adjuster has been
granted an extension or waiver by the department. The department may not issue a new
appointment of the same or similar type to a licensee who was denied a renewal
appointment for falling to complete continuing education as required until the licensee
completes his or her continuing education requirement.
(11) The department may contract services relative to the administration of the continuing
education program to a private entity. The contract shall be procured as a contractual
service pursuant to s. 287.057.

626.2816 Regulation of continuing education for licensees, course providers, instructors,
school officials, and monitor groups.—

(1) Continuing education course providers, instructors, school officlals, and monitor groups
must be approved by the department before offering continuing education courses pursuant
to s. 626.2815 or s. 626.869.

(2) The department shall adopt rules establishing standards for the approval, regulation,
and operation of the continuing education programs and for the discipline of licensees,
course providers, instructors, school officials, and monitor groups. The standards must be
designed to ensure that such course providers, instructors, school officials, and monitor
groups have the knowledge, competence, and integrity to fulfill the educational objectives of
ss. 626.2815, 626,869, 648.385, and 648.386.




690-228
Rulemaking Authority

(3) The department shall adopt rules establishing a process by which compliance with the
continuing education requirements of ss. 626,2815, 626.869, 648.385, and 648.386 can be
determined, the establishment of a continuing education compliance period for licensees,
and forms necessary to implement such a process

626.869 License, adjusters; continuing e'ducation._—

(5) The regulation of continuing education for licensees, course providers, instructors,
school officials, and monitor groups shall be as provided in s, 626,2816.

624.501 Filing, license, appointment, and miscellaneous fees.—The department,
commission, or office, as appropriate, shall collect in advance, and persons so served shaH
pay to it in advance fees licenses, and miscellaneous charges as follows:

(1) Certificate of authority of insurer.

(a) Filing application for original certificate of authority or modification thereof as a result
of a merger, acquisition, or change of controlling interest due to a sale or exchange of
stock, including all documents required to be filed therewith, filing fee.......... $1,500.00
{b) Reinstatement fee.......... $50.00

{2) Charter documents of insurer. '

(a) Filing articles of incorporation or other charter documents, other than at time of

application for original certificate of authority, filing fee.......... $10.00

(b) -Filing amendment to articles of incorporation or charter, other than at time of
application for original certificate of authority, filing fee.......... $5.00

(c) Filing bylaws, when required, or amendments thereof, filing fee.......... $5.00

(3) Annual license tax of insurer, each domestic insurer, foreign insurer, and alien insurer
(except that, as to fraternal benefit societies insuring less than 200 members in this state
and the members of which as a prerequisite to membership possess a physical handicap or
disability, such license tax shall

be $25).......... $1,000.00

(4) Statements of insurer, filing (except when filed as part of application for original
certificate of authority), filing fees:

(a) Annual statement.......... $250.00

(b) Quarterly statement.......... $250.00

(5) All insurance representatives, application for license, apphcatlon for reinstatement of
suspended license, each filing, filing fee.......... $50.00

(6) Insurance representatives, property, marine, casualty, and surety insurance.

(a) Agent's original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof, each
insurer:

Appointment fee.......... $42.00
State tax.......... 12.00

County tax.......... 6.00
Total.......... $60.00

(b) Customer representative’s original aphointment and biennial renewal or continuation
thereof:



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

Appointment fee.......... $42.00
State tax.......... 12.00

County tax.......... 6.00
Total.......... $60.00

(c) Nonresident agent’s original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof,
appointment fee, each insurer.......... $60.00

(d) Service representatives; managing general agents.

Original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof, each insurer or managing general
agent; whichever is applicable.......... $60.00

(7) Life insurance agents.

(a) Agent's original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof, each insurer
or agent making an appointment;

Appointment fee.......... $42.00
State tax.......... 12.00

County tax.......... 6.00
Total.......... $60.00

(b} Nonresident agent’s original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof
appointment fee, each insurer.......... $60.00

{8) Health insurance agents.

(a) Agent’s original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof, each
insurer:

Appointment fee.......... $42.00
State tax.......... 12.00

C'ounty taX......o.oe 6.00
Total.vuv.wen. $60 00

(b) Nonresident agent’s original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof,
appointment fee, each insurer.......... $60.00 _
(9)(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b), all limited appointments as agent, as provided
forin s. £26.321. Agent’s original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof,
each insurer:

Appointment fee.......... $42.00

State tax.......... 12.00



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

County tax..........6.00

Total.......... $60.00

(b) For all limited appointments as agent, as provided in s. 626.321(1){c) and (d), the
agent's original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof for each insurer is
equal to the number of offices, branch offices, or places of business covered by the license
multiplied by the fees set forth in paragraph (a).

(10) Fraternal benefit society agents. Original appointment and biennial renewal or
continuation thereof, each insurer:

Appointment fee.......... $42.00
State tax.......... 12.00

County tax.......... 6.00
Total.......... $60.00

{11) Surplus lines agent. Agent’s appointment and biennial renewal or continuation
thereof, appointment fee.......... $150.00

(12) Adjusters:

(a) Adjuster’s original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof,
appointment fee.......... $60.00

(b} Nonresident adjuster’s original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation
thereof, appointment fee.......... $60.00

(c} Emergency adjuster’s license, appointment fee.......... $10.00

(d) Fee to cover actual cost of credit report, when such report must be secured by
department.

(13) . Examination—Fee to cover actual cost of examination.

(14) Temporary license and appointment as agent or adjuster, where expressly provided
for, rate of fee for each month of the period for which the license and appointment is
issued.......... $5.00 : :

(15) Issuance, reissuance, reinstatement, modification resulting in a modified license being
issued, duplicate copy of any insurance representative license, or an appointment being
reinstated.......... $5.00 .

(16) Additional appointment continuation fees as prescribed in chapter 626.......... $5.00
(17} Filing application for permit to form insurer as referred to in chapter 628, filing

fee. ... $25.00

(18)- Annual license fee of rating organization, each domestic or foreign
organization.......... $25.00

(19) Miscellaneous services:

(a) For copies of documents or records on file with the department, commission, or office,
per

(b) For each certificate of the department, commission, or office under its seal,
authenticating any document or other instrument (other than a license or certificate of
authority).......... $5.00

(c) For preparing lists of agents, adjusters, and other insurance representatives, and for
other miscellaneous services, such reasonable charge as may be fixed by the office or
department.



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

(d) For processing requests for approval of continuing education courses, processing
fee. i, $100.00

{e) Insurer's registration fee for agent exchanging business more than 24 times in
calendar year under s. 626.752, s. 626.793, or s, §26.837, registration fee per agent per
Yeal . iiirr-- $30.00

(20) Adjusting firm, original or renewal 3-year license.,........ $60.00

(21) Limited surety agent or professional bail bond agent, as defined in s. 648.25, each
agent and each insurer represented. Original appointment and biennial renewal or
continuation thereof, each agent or insurer, whichever is applicable:

Appointment fee.......... $44.00
State tax.......... 24.00

County tax.......... 12,00
Total.......... $80.00

(22} Certain military installations, as authorized under s. 626.322: original appointment
and biennial renewal or continuation thereof, each insurer.......... $20.00
(23) Filing application for original certificate of authority for third-party administrator or

original certificate of approval for a service company, including all documents required to be
filed therewith, filing fee.......... $100.00

(24) Fingerprinting processing fee—Fee to cover fingerprint processing,
(25) Sales representatives, miscellaneous lines. Original appointment and biennial renewal

or continuation thereof, appointment fee.......... $60.00
(26) Reinsurance intermediary;
{a) Application filing and license fee.......... $50.00

(b) Original appointment and biennial renewal or continuation thereof, appointment
fee....oin.en $60.00

(27) Title insurance agents:
(a) Agent's original appointment or biennial renewal or continuation thereof, each insurer:

Appointment fee.......... $42.00
State tax.......... 12.00
County tax.......... 6.00

Total.......... 560.00

(b) Agency original appointment or biennial renewal or continuation thereof, each insurer:

Appointment fee.......... $42.00
State tax.......... 12.00
County tax.......... 6.00

Total.......... $60.00



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

(c) Filing for title insurance agent’s license:

Appiication for filing, each filing, filing
fee.......... $10.00

(d) Additional appointment continuation fee as prescribed by s. 626.843.......... $5.00

(e) Title insurer and title insurance agency administrative surcharge:

1. On or before January 30 of each calendar year, each title insurer shall pay to the office
for each licensed title insurance agency appointed by the title insurer and for each retail
office of the insurer on January 1 of that calendar year an administrative surcharge of

© $200.00.

2. On or before January 30 of each calendar year, each licensed title insurance agency
shall remit to the department an administrative surcharge of $200.00,

The administrative surcharge may be used solely to defray the costs to the department and office in
their examination or audit of title insurance agencies and retail offices of title insurers and to gather

title insurance data for statistical purposes to be furnished to and used by the office in its regulation of
title insurance.

(28) Late filing of appointment renewals for agents, adjusters, and other insurance
representatives, each appointment.......... $20.00

648.385 Continuing education required; requirements,— ' _
(1) The purpose of this section is to establish requirements and standards for continuing
education courses for persons authorized to write bail bonds in this state.

(2} Each person subject to this chapter must complete a minimum of 14 hours of
continuing education courses every 2 years as specified in s. 626.2815.

648.26 Department of Financial Services; administration.—

(1) The department shall administer the provisions of this chapter as provided in this
chapter,

(a) The department has authority to adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to
implement the provisions of this chapter conferring powers or duties upon it.

(b) The department may employ and discharge such employees, examiners, counsel, and
other assistants as shall be deemed necessary, and it shall prescribe their duties: their
compensation shall be the same as other state employees receive for similar services.

(2) The department shall adopt a seal by which its proceedings are authenticated. Any
written instrument purporting to be a copy of any action, proceeding, or finding of fact by
the department, or any record of the department authenticated by the seal, shall be
accepted by all the courts of this state as prima facie evidence of the contents thereof.

(3) The papers, documents, reports, or any other investigatory records of the department
are confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1) until such investigation is
completed or ceases to be active. For the purpose of this section, an investigation is
considered “active” while the investigation is being conducted by the department with a
reasonable, good faith belief that it may lead to the filing of administrative, civil, or criminal
proceedings. An investigation does not cease to be active if the department is proceeding
with reasonable dispatch and there is good faith belief that action may be initiated by the
department or other administrative or law enforcement agency.



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

648.386 Qualifications for prelicensing and continuing education schools and instructors.—
(1) SCHOOLS AND CURRICULUM FOR PRELICENSING SCHOOLS.—1In order to be

considered for approval and certification as an approved limited surety agent and
professional bail bond agent prelicensing school, such entity must: :
(a)1. Offera minimum of two 120-hour classroom-instruction basic certification courses in
the criminal justice system per calendar year unless a reduced number of course offerings
per calendar year is warranted in accordance with rules promulgated by the department; or
2. Offer a department-approved correspondence course pursuant to department rules.

(b) Submit a prelicensing course curriculum to the department for approval.

(c) 1If applicable, offer prelicensing classes which are taught by instructors approved by the
department.

(2) SCHOOLS AND CURRICULUM FOR CONTINUING EDUCATION SCHOOQLS.—In order to be
considered for approval and certification as an approved limited surety agent and
professional bail bond agent continuing education school, such entity must:

(a} Provide a minimum of three continuing education classes per calendar year.

(b) Submit a course curriculum to the department for approval.

(c) Offer continuing education classes which are comprised of a minimum of 2 hours of
approved coursework and are taught by an approved supervising instructor or guest lecturer
approved by the entity or the supervising instructor.

(3) GEOGRAPHIC REQUIREMENTS.—Any provider approved under this section by the
department to offer prelicensing courses or continuing education courses shall be required
to offer such courses in at least two geographic areas of the state until such time that the
department determines that there are adequate providers statewide to provide these
courses to applicants and licensees.

(4) INSTRUCTOR'S DUTIES AND QUALIFICATIONS.—

. (a) Each course must have a supervising instructor who is approved by the department.

The supervising instructor shall be present at all classes. The supervising instructor is
responsible for:

All course instructors.

All guest lecturers,

The course outlines and curriculum,

Certification of each attending limited surety agent or professional bail bond agent.
Completion of all required forms.

Assuring that the course is approved.

DU D WM

Either the entity or the supervising instructor may approve guest lecturers.

(b} In order to obtain department approval as a supervising instructor, the following
gualifications must be met:

1. During the past 15 years, the person must have had at least 10 years’ experience as a
manager or officer of a managing general agent in this state as prescribed in s. 648.388:
2. During the past 15 years, the person must have had at least 10 years’ experience as a
manager or officer of an insurance company authorized to and actively engaged in
underwriting bail in this state, provided there is a showing that the manager’s or officer’s
experience is directly related to the bail bond industry; or

3. The person has been a licensed bail bond agent in this state for at least 10 years.

(c) In order to obtain department approval as an instructor or guest lecturer, the person
must be qualified by education or experience in the specific area of instruction as prescribed
by department rules.

{d) A person teaching any approved course of instruction or lecturing at any approved
seminar and attending the entire course or seminar shall qualify for the same number of
classroom hours as would be granted to a person taking and successfully completing such



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

course, seminar, or program. Credit shall be limited to the number of hours actually taught
unless a person attends the entire course or seminar.

(e) The department shall adopt rules necessary to carry out the duties conferred upon it
under this section.

626.9541 Unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices
defined.—

(1) UNFAIR METHODS OF COMPETITION AND UNFAIR OR DECEPTIVE ACTS.—The following
are defined as unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices:

(b} False information and advertising generally.—Knowingly making, publishing,
disseminating, circulating, or placing before the public, or causing, directly or indirectly, to
be made, published, disseminated, circulated, or placed before the public:

In @ newspaper, magazine, or cther publication,

In the form of a notice, circular, pamphlet, letter, or poster,

Over any radio or television station, or

In any other way,

A

an advertisement, announcement, or statement containing any assertion, representation, or statement
with respect to the business of insurance, which is untrue, deceptive, or misleading.

626.8419 Appointment of title insurance agency.—

{1) The title insurer engaging or employing the titie insurance agency must file with the
department, on forms furnished by the department, an application certifying that the
proposed title insurance agency meets all of the following requirements:

{a) The agency must have obtained a fidelity bond in an amount, not less than $50,000,
acceptable to the insurer appointing the agency. If a fidelity bond is unavailable generally,
the department must adopt rules for alternative methads to comply with this paragraph.

(b) The agency must have obtained errors and omissions insurance in an amount
acceptable to the insurer appointing the agency. The amount of the coverage may not be
less than $250,000 per claim and an aggregate limit with a deductible no greater than
$10,000. If errors and omissions insurance is unavailable generally, the department must
adopt rules for alternative methods to comply with this paragraph.

(c) Notwithstanding s. 626.8418(2), the agency must have obtained a surety bond in an
amount not less than $35,000 made payable to the title insurer or title insurers appointing
the agency. The surety bond must be for the benefit of any appointing title insurer damaged
by a violation by the title insurance agency of its contract with the appointing title insurer. If
the surety bond is payable to multiple title insurers, the surety bond must provide that each
title insurer is to be notified in the event a claim is made upon the surety bond or the bond
is terminated.

(d) The surety bond must remain in effect and unimpaired as long as the agency is
appointed by a title insurer. The agency must provide written proof to the appointing title
insurer or insurers on an annual basis evidencing that the surety bond is still in effect and
unimpaired.

(e) A title insurer may not provide the surety bond directly or indirectly on behalf of the
agency.

627.952 Risk retention and purchasing group agents.—

(1) Any person offering, soliciting, selling, purchasing, administering, or otherwise
servicing insurance contracts, certificates, or agreements for any purchasing group or risk
retention group to any resident of this state, either directly or indirectly, by the use of mail,



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

advertising, or other means of communication, shall obtain a license and appointment to act
as a resident general lines agent, if a resident of this state, or a nonresident general lines
agent if not a resident. Any such person shall be subject to all requirements of the Florida
Insurance Code, '

(b) Any person required to be licensed and appointed under this subsection, in order to
place business through Fiorida eligible surplus lines carriers, must, if a resident of this state,
be licensed and appointed as a surplus lines agent. If not a resident of this state, such
person must be licensed and appointed as a surplus lines agent in her or his state of
residence and file and maintain a fidelity bond in favor of the people of the State of Florida
executed by a surety company admitted in this state and payable to the State of Florida;
however, such nonresident is limited to the provision of insurance for purchasing groups.
The bond must be continuous in form and in the amount of not less than $50,000,
aggregate liability. The bond must remain in force and effect until the surety is released
from liability by the department or until the bond is canceled by the surety. The surety may
cancel the bond and be released from further liability upon 30 days’ prior written notice to
the department. The cancellation does not affect any liability incurred or accrued before the
termination of the 30-day period. Upon receipt of a notice of cancellation, the department
shall immediately notify the agent.

626.611 Grounds for compuisory refusal, suspension, or revocation of agent’s, title
-agency's, adjuster’s, customer representative’s, service representative’s, or managing
general agent’s license or appointment.—The department shall deny an application for,
suspend, revoke, or refuse to renew or continue the license or appointment of any
applicant, agent, title agency, adjuster, customer representative, service representative, or
managing general agent, and it shall suspend or revoke the eligibility to hold a license or
appointment of any such person, if it finds that as to the applicant, licensee, or appointee
any one or more of the following applicable grounds exist:

(1) Lack of one or more of the qualifications for the license or appointment as specified in
this code. _ 7

(2) Material misstatement, misrepresentation, or fraud in obtaining the license or
appointment or in attempting to obtain the license or appointment.

(3) Failure to pass to the satisfaction of the department any examination required under
this code,

(4) If the license or appointment is willfully used, or to be used, to circumvent any of the -
requirements or prohibitions of this code,

(5) Willful misrepresentation of any insurance policy or annuity contract or wiliful deception
with regard to any such policy or contract, done either in person or by any form of
dissemination of information or advertising.

(6) If, as an adjuster, or agent licensed and appointed to adjust claims under this code, he
or she has materially misrepresented to an insured or other interested party the terms and
coverage of an insurance contract with intent and for the purpose of effecting settlement of
claim for loss or damage or benefit under such contract on less favorable terms than those
provided in and contemplated by the contract.

(7) Demonstrated lack of fitness or trustworthiness to engage in the business of insurance.
(8) Demonstrated lack of reasonably adequate knowledge and technical competence to
engage in the transactions authorized by the license or appointment.

(9) Fraudulent or dishonest practices in the conduct of business under the license or
appointment.

(10) Misappropriation, conversion, or untawful withholding of moneys belonging to insurers
or insureds or beneficiaries or to others and received in conduct of business under the
license or appointment,



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

(11) Unlawfully rebating, attempting to unlawfully rebate, or unlawfully dividing or offering
to divide his or her commission with another.

(12) Having obtained or attempted to obtain, or having used or using, a license or
appointment as agent or customer representative for the purpose of soliciting or handling
“controlled business” as defined in s. 626.730Q with respect to general lines agents, s.
626.784 with respect to life agents, and s. 626.830 with respect to health agents.

(13) Willful failure to comply with, or willful violation of, any proper order or rule of the

"~ department or willful viclation of any provision of this code.

(14) Having been found guilty of or having pleaded guilty or nolo contendere to a felony or
a crime punishable by imprisonment of 1 year or more under the law of the United States of
America or of any state thereof or under the law of any other country which involves moral
turpitude, without regard to whether a judgment of conviction has been entered by the
court having jurisdiction of such cases.

(15) Fraudulent or dishonest practice in submitting or aiding or abetting any person in the
submission of an application for workers’ compensation coverage under chapter 440
contammg false or misleading information as to employee payroll or classification for the
purpose of avoiding or reducing the amount of premium due for such coverage.

(16) Sale of an unregistered security that was required to be registered, pursuant to
chapter 517.

(17) In transactions related to viatical settlement contracts as defined in s. 626.9911:

{(a) Commission of a fraudulent or dishonest act.

(b) No longer meeting the requirements for initial licensure.

(c) Having received a fee, commission, or other valuable consideration for his or her
services with respect to viatical settlements that involved unlicensed viatical settlement
providers or persons who offered or attempted to negotiate on behalf of another person a
viatical settlement contract as defined in s. 626.9911 and who were not licensed life agents.
(d) Dealing in bad faith with viators.

626.621 Grounds for discretionary refusal, suspension, or revocation of agent’s, adjuster’s,
customer representative’s, service representative’s, or managing general agent’s license or
appointment.—The department may, in its discretion, deny an application for, suspend,
revoke, or refuse to renew or continue the license or appointment of any applicant, agent,
adjuster, customer representative, service representative, or managing general agent, and
it may suspend or revoke the eligibility to hold a license or appointment of any such person,
if it finds that as to the applicant, licensee, or appointee any one or more of the following
applicable grounds exist under circumstances for which such denial, suspension, revocation,
or refusal is not mandatory under s. 626.611:

(1) Any cause for which issuance of the license or appointment could have been refused
had it then existed and been known to the department.

(2) Violation of any provision of this code or of any other law applicable to the business of
insurance in the course of dealing under the license or appointment.

(3) Violation of any lawful order or rule of the department, commission, or office.

(4) Failure or refusal, upon demand, to pay over to any insurer he or she represents or has
represented any money coming into his or her hands belonging to the insurer.

(5) Violation of the provision against twisting, as defined in s. 626.9541(1)(l).

(6) In the conduct of business under the license or appointment, engaging in unfair
methods of competition or in unfair or deceptive acts or practices, as prohibited under part
IX of this chapter, or having otherwise shown himself or herself to be a source of injury or
loss to the public.

(7) Willful overinsurance of any property or health insurance risk.

(8) Having been found guilty of or having pleaded guilty or nole contendere to a felony or
a crime punishable by imprisonment of 1 year or more under the [aw of the United States of
America or of any state thereof or under the law of any other country, without regard to



690-228
Rulemaking Authority

whether a judgment of conviction has been entered by the court having jurisdiction of such
cases, _

(9) If a life agent, violation of the code of ethics.

(10) Cheating on an examination required for licensure or violating test center or
examination procedures published orally, in writing, or electronically at the test site by
authorized representatives of the examination program administrator. Communication of
test center and examination procedures must be clearly established and documented.

(11) Failure to inform the department in writing within 30 days after pleading guilty or nolo
contendere to, or being convicted or found guilty of, any felony or a crime punishable by
imprisonment of 1 year or more under the law of the United States or of any state thereof,
or under the law of any other country without regard to whether a judgment of conviction
has been entered by the court having jurisdiction of the case.

(12) Knowingly aiding, assisting, procuring, advising, or abetting any person in the
violation of or to violate a provision of the insurance code or any order or rule of the
department, commission, or office. :

(13) Has been the subject of or has had a license, permit, appointment, registration, or
other authority to conduct business subject to any decision, finding, injunction, suspension,
prohibition, revocation, denial, judgment, final agency action, or administrative order by any
court of competent jurisdiction, administrative law proceeding, state agency, federal
agency, national securities, commodities, or option exchange, or national securities,
commodities, or option association involving a violation of any federal or state securities or
commodities law or any rule or regulation adopted thereunder, or a violation of any rule or
regulation of any national securities, commodities, or options exchange or national
securities, commeodities, or options association,

(14) Failure to comply with any civil, criminal, or administrative action taken by the child
support enforcement program under Title IV-D of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. ss. 651
et seq., to determine paternity or to establish, modify, enforce, or collect support.

626,681 Administrative fine in lieu of or in addition to suspension, revocation, or refusal of
license, appointment, or disapproval,—

(1) Except as to insurance agencies, if the department finds that one or more grounds
exist for the suspension, revocation, or refusal to issue, renew, or continue any license or
appointment issued under this chapter, or disapproval of a continuing education course
provider, instructor, school official, or monitor groups, the department may, in its
discretion, in lieu of or in addition to such suspension or revocation, or in lieu of such
refusal, or disapproval, and except on a second offense or when such suspension,
revocation, or refusal is mandatory, impose upon the licensee, appointee, course provider,
instructor, school official, or monitor group an administrative penalty in an amount up to
$500 or, if the department has found willful misconduct or willful violation on the part of the
licensee, appointee, course provider, instructor, school official, or monitor group up to
$3,500. The administrative penalty may, in the discretion of the department, be augmented
by an amount equal to any commissions received by or accruing to the credit of the licensee
or appointee in connection with any transaction as to which the grounds for suspension,
revocation, or refusal related.

(2) With respect to insurance agencies, if the department finds that one or more grounds
exist for the suspension, revocation, or refusal to issue, renew, or continue any license
issued under this chapter, the department may, in its discretion, in lieu of or in addition to
such suspension or revocation, or in lieu of such refusal, impose upon the licensee an
administrative penalty in an amount not to exceed $10,000 per violation. The administrative
penalty may, in the discretion of the department, be augmented by an amount equal to any
commissions received by or accruing to the credit of the licensee in connection with any
transaction as to which the grounds for suspension, revocation, or refusal related.



.690-228
Rulemaking Authority

(3) The department may allow the licensee, appointee, or continuing education course
provider, instructor, school official, or monitor group a reasonable period, not to exceed 30
days, within which to pay to the department the amount of the penalty so imposed. If the
licensee, appointee, course provider, instructor, school official, or monitor group fails to pay
the penalty in its entirety to the department within the period so allowed, the license,
appointments, approval, or status of that person shall stand suspended or revoked or
issuance, renewal, or continuation shall be refused, as the case may be, upon expiration of
such period.

626.691 Probation.—

(1) 1If the department finds that one or more grounds exist for the suspension, revocation,
or refusal to renew or continue any license or appointment issued under this part, the
department may, in its discretion, except when an administrative fine is not permissible
under s. 626,681 or when such suspension, revocation, or refusail is mandatory, in lieu of or
in addition to such suspension or revocation, or in lieu of such refusal, or in connection with
any administrative monetary penalty imposed under s. 626.681, place the offending
licensee or appointee on probation for a period, not to exceed 2 years, as specified by the
department in its order.

(2) As a condition to such probation or in connection therewith, the department may
specify in its order reasonable terms and conditions to be fulfilled by the probationer during
the probation period. If during the probation period the department has good cause to
believe that the probationer has violated a term or condition, it shall suspend, revoke, or
refuse to issue, renew, or continue the license or appomtment of the probationer, as upon

' the original grounds referred to in subsection (1).

624.4211 Administrative fine in lieu of suspension or revocation.—

(1) If the office finds that one or more grounds exist for the discretionary revocation or
suspension of a certificate of authority issued under this chapter, the office may, in lieu of
suich revocation or suspension, impose a fine upon the insurer,

(2) With respect to any nonwillful violation, such fine may not exceed $5,000 per violation.
In no event shall such fine exceed an aggregate amount of $20,000 for all nonwillful
violations arising out of the same action. If an insurer discovers a nonwillful violation, the
insurer shall correct the violation and, if restitution is due, make restitution to all affected
persons. Such restitution shall include interest at 12 percent per year from either the date
of the violation or the date of inception of the affected person’s policy, at the insurer's
option. The restitution may be a credit against future premiums due provided that interest
accumulates until the premiums are due. If the amount of restitution due to any person is
$50 or more and the insurer wishes to credit it against future premiums, it shall notify such
person that she or he may receive a check instead of a credit. If the credit is on a policy
that is not renewed, the insurer shall pay the restitution to the person to whom it is due.
(3) With respect to any knowing and willful violation of a lawful order or rule of the office
or commission or a provision of this code, the office may impose a fine upon the insurer in
an amount not to exceed $40,000 for each such violation. In no event shall such fine exceed
an aggregate amount of $200,000 for all knowing and willful violations arising out of the
same action. In addition to such fines, the insurer shall make restitution when due in
accordance with subsection (2).

(4) The failure of an insurer to make restitution when due as required under this section
constitutes a willful violation of this code. However, if an insurer in good faith is uncertain as
to whether any restitution is due or as to the amount of such restitution, it shall promptly
notify the office of the circumstances; and the failure to make restitution pending a
determination thereof shall not constitute a viclation of this code.



690-228
Rulemaking Authority



	Blank Page
	Blank Page

